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At a glance

Severn Trent Water provides high quality water and sewerage services to over 4 2 million households
and businesses In the Midlands and mid-Wales

Our vision

Qur vision 1s to be the best water and waste water company in the UK by prowviding the highest
standards, and lowest possible charges, through our great people

Key strengths

* We are committed to long term sustainability, keeping in balance the needs of our customers,
the environment and our investors

« OQur high standards and efficiencies keep our costs low and generate progressive, sustainable
returns for our shareholders

*  Our bills for water and sewerage combined are the lowest on average in England and Wales

*  We have one of the lowest per capita consumption rates in the UK

»  We continually work to improve our performance and deliver cost and operational efficiencies
against Key Performance Indicators (KPls), each of which 1s aligned to our long term strategy

« We have a clear business plan and a strong management team

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from
mid-Wales to the East Midlands

Key Facts

P85m Hies

50020F2012; B03. 7 20979

*Before interest, tax and exceptional items

EmpleyeeslatilMarchy? 012 Waste water collected per day

15%¥294} 1.4bn litres

TVITRENGET 2R

The industry

The water industry in England and Wales invests more than £3 billion a year and employs over 27,000
people There are currently 10 water and sewerage compantes In England and Wales Our sector is
facing significant long term challenges The privatisation of the industry in 1989 led to improvements in
services to customers, better qualty drnnking water and higher environmental standards Our
proposals for changes in our industry are helping us to play a role in shaping the debate

Our business

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work within five year planning cycles, with the prices
we charge our customers set at the beginning of each cycle by our economic regulator, Ofwat These
five year cycles are known as Asset Management Plan (AMP) periods. We have just reached the end
of the second year of AMP5

How we measure success
Water companies are required to publish performance against a set of indicators These indicators

provide Ofwat with an overall picture of company performance against the commitments made as part
of the AMPS5 price review.
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As well as being regulated by Ofwat, our performance 1s also monitored by

+ the Drninking Water Inspectorate, which 1s responsible for making sure we comply with drinking
water quality regulations, and
« the Environment Agency, which controls water abstraction, nver pollution and flooding

We also work with the UK Government (including the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs and the Welsh Assembly Government) and other agencies such as the Consumer Council for
Water, Natural England and Countryside Council for Wales to make sure we meet the highest
customer service and environmental standards, while offerning our customers the lowest prices

Key strategic intentions

Our strategy 1s based on eight Key Strategic Intentions {(KSis) which reflect what matters to our
customers and wider stakeholder groups We measure our performance within each KSI against our
20 Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Providing a continuous supply of quality water
Dealing effectively with waste water
Responding to customers’ needs

Minimising our carbon footpnnt

Having the lowest possible charges

Having the right skills to deliver

Maintaining investor confidence

Promoting an effective regulatory regime

ONOGOAWNS

Delivering our strategy through areas of focus
We focus on four key areas — customers, people, process and finance — to deliver the highest
standards and lowest charges to our customers, through a highly skilled and commutied workforce

Customers
Our household customers have on average, the lowest bills in England and Wales But keeping
customers satisfied 1s not just about low charges and value for money We also need to deliver

reliability, reflect their needs and prionties in our plans, communicate clearly, keep our promises and
put things nght if they go wrong

People
Our people are the cornerstone of our success We strive to recruit, train and retain the best people,
underpinned by great workplaces and a strong culture of safety and personal responsibility

Process
Our drive to work safer, better and faster 1s the foundation of our approach to continuous

improvement Making sure we have the nght processes and systems in place 1s a fundamental part of
our drive for operational excellence

Finance

The higher our standards the more effectively and efficiently we work In turn this improves our ability
to keep our costs low and generate progressive, sustainable returns which earns the trust of our
investors and shareholders We always look to finance the company In an efficient, sustanable way
and maintain an investment grade credit rating
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Chief Executive’s review

Our household customers still have the lowest bills, on average, in England and Wales, and our prices
will increase by less than the industry average in 2012/13 We've also been able to keep bad debts
down, despite rising unemployment, by helping customers in need to pay therr bills

During the year, we remained focused on mproving our service and efficiency We stepped up our
network replacement, which helped us in the aftermath of the harsh December in 2010, which was the
coldest in 100 years Leakage was reduced to a new low, ahead of our target, and we dramatically
reduced interruptions to supply

Despite the dnest 18 months on record, we managed our resources carefully and kept our customers
supplied with high quality water, without having a hosepipe ban As we enter the next financial year,
our water resources mean that we do not presently expect any usage restrictions

One of the year's key achrevements was our smooth adoption of 37,000 km of private drains and
sewers Feedback from customers has been positive and the extra work required to repar and
maintain these assets has so far been at the lower end of our expectations

Any company that wants long term, sustainable success has to work in the right way We call our
approach 'Safer, Better Faster' It's a combination of management disciplines and our belief in people
taking responsibility for the way they work We want our people to do the rnight thing the Severn Trent
way, to get things nght first time, to help cut waste from our systems and processes, and to care about
one another We've built our abiity to continuously improve, developing our people and upgrading our
workplaces and technology, so we have a better working environment All of these help us to deliver
great service efficiently

Key areas for continued improvement include our environmental management, further reducing water
supply interruptions and our customers' experience of our services

We're not content with what we've achieved, so we're always looking for new areas for success For
example, we're increasingly using technology to make it easter for our customers to contact us and for
us to stay in touch with them And we’re introducing new water and waste water treatment processes
that will cut energy use and make us more efficient

Severn Trent Water already has a sector leading position in renewable energy and we’re on track to
generate up to 30% of our electricity by 2015 We have no strong desire to be a big etectricity
generator — our motivation 1s to keep prices low for customers and reduce our carbon emissions The
next steps include increasing our use of anaerobic digestion and wind turbines

The UK economy will remain tough for both consumers and businesses. This means we must
continue to focus on delivering efficient, high qualty and low cost services, and be attentive to our
customers’ needs The UK climate will also be a challenge and we will have to manage our water
resources carefully The coming year will see us continuing with our preparations for the next price
review In 2014 (PR14) Engaging with our customers and other stakeholders will be key, as we
develop with them our plans for investment in our water and waste water networks to maintamn the
services provided, deliver our environmental obligations and ensure secunty of supply
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For several years, Severn Trent Water has been at the forefront of shaping the future of the water
sector in the UK through the development of a series of publications known as ‘Changing Course’
We're encouraged that our ideas are reflected in Ofwat's publications on regulatory compliance and
future price mits, and in the UK Government's Water White Paper These ideas will lead to optimal
use of water resources, better financial and environmental outcomes for customers and more certainty
for investors Looking to future opportunities for growth, Severn Trent Water 1s ideally placed to benefit
from water trading and to help other water companies meet thewr strategic shortfalls in supply —
something we first championed in ‘Changing Course’ and that has now been picked up by Ofwat and
the UK Government

Tony Wray
Chief Executive
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Strategy

Our strategy I1s focused on delivenng sustainable growth This 1s crucial to us because we have to plan
far ahead - often over decades To be truly sustainable, we must maintain the approprnate balance
across our customers, people, the environment and investors.

Water 1s vital to life, so we look to offer the highest quality at a price customers can afford We need to
attract investment, so we can fund the infrastructure our service depends on Our people must have
the skills, support and motivation to continually improve our service We have to protect the
environment because our business and our customers depend upon it to provide the resources we
need

Achieving this balance leads directly t¢ good financial performance It allows us to deliver organic
growth and reliable returns over the long term, without excessive risk

The timescales we work to are long, but our industry doesn’t stand still Politics, regulation, chmate
and the availabihity of finance all change over time, both in the UK and internationally. For this reason,
our board considers strategic topics regularly and formally reviews our strategy every year The
experience of recent years supports our view that we're following the nght strategy Whatever
happens to economies around the world, the need for clean water and sanitation remains

Our strategy
Sustainable
Strategy aim Highlights 2012 Key measures
Delivering value for our o At Severn Trent Water we are 4.88 464 Miid
customers and investors. focused on delivering key service
improvements Customer wntten | Leakage megalitres
- we have met our leakage targets, ‘1’°(;‘88'a‘:“s P per day
- interruptions to supply have been (éTW)p operes
reduced,
- we have maintained secunty of {2011 572) {2011 497)
supply 1n a dry year and
- we have maintained the lowest
charges In the UK
Sustainable financing, « We are well financed £844.7m 58%
ensuring we have a * We have successfully refinanced
strong and flexible part our debt Cash generated Net Debt/RCV
balance sheet. « We have maintained a strong from operations | Gearing
credit rating (2011 £827 1m) | (2011 59%)
¢+ We have kept our dividend
promise
Responsible leadership, + We have mproved our health and | Support for water trading in the UK
protecting the safety performance s\"’:tee'r"f';'re[‘:f':_wa‘e’ White Paper,
environment, thinking ¢ We have generated record levels
long term and setting of renewable energy
high standards in e We have completed a senes of
everything we do. successful catchment
management pilots
+« We have influenced the
regulatory debate around the
future of our industry
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Growth

Strategy aim Highlights 2012 Key measures
Growing Severn Trentin | « We have made good progress In 4.0%
the UK through preparation for the next price

investment in our review 1n 2014 (PR14) RCV growth
networks and service. « We have successfully transferred | 2011 €2%)

private drains and sewers to our
asset database

» We grew our Regulated Capital
Value (RCV) by £275 million

Positioning Severn Trent | « We are well placed Severn Trent Water 1s looking at

to capitalise on geographically to benefit from gfg:;:;‘g‘lzsc‘;’uﬁ;""'de water to other
opportunities in a future water trading i

changing regulatory

framework.

Our business model

Water 1s essential to ife and to the communities in which we live and work Severn Trent Waler 1s
intrinsically inked to the Iife cycle of water The customer ts at the heart of our continuous drive to
improve our operations and services across collection, delivery and cleaning of water

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work within five year planning cycles, with customer
prices set by our economic regulator, Ofwat, to allow us to fund our iInvestment programme and cover
an efficient level of operating costs We are also subject to regulation by two qualty regulators — the
DWI and the EA

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by RPI inflation each year In certain circumstances we can
ask for pnices to be reviewed within the five year penod due to costs associated with ‘notified items' or
‘relevant changes of circumstance’ Customer bad debt and the adoption of private drains and sewers
are included in these categories for the current five year period

The company earns a return on our asset base We can generate additional returns if we outperform
Ofwat’'s assumptions by becoming more efficient in the delivery of our capital programme, managing
our operational costs more effectively, and by financing our business at a lower cost

Our operating performance 1s assessed and benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat At the next
price review there 1s scope to earn additional income, or suffer penalties, based on our perfermance

Risks

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory environment as a water and sewerage service
provider in England and Wales As a result we face a number of nsks including those associated with
possible non-comphance with our legal and regulatory framework and failure to meet the terms of our
regulatory contract as set out in our agreed business plan for 2010-2015. We also face nsks
associated with possible future changes in legislation which may result in our business plans
becoming unsustainable
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Business review
Performance

As we explain on page 4, Severn Trent Water strives for high standards and focuses on four key areas
— customers, people, process and finance Hawving the right people with the night skills, using the nght
processes, enables us to offer high quality, low cost services to our customers This in turn drives our
financial results

The following pages descnbe what we delivered for our customers dunng the year, along with the
development of our people and processes Severn Trent Water's financial performance 1s explained in
the financial review, on page 20.

Customers

We want to deliver the highest standards and lowest possible prices for our customers Our water and
sewerage bills are the lowest on average in England and Wales, at £311 We're also increasing prices
slower than most other companies In 2012/13, the industry average price increase will be 5 7%,
compared to § 0% for our customers.

A continuous supply of quality water
We aim to deliver water that's good to drink, meaning that it's safe, tastes and looks good, and 1s
always avallable

Although the last 18 months were the drest ever recorded, we avoided any hosepipe bans or other
hmits on our customers’ water use We did this by reacting quickly to conditions and by effective,
forward and proactive planning We draw our water from reservorrs, rivers and underground aquifers.
By making sure we always used the most appropnate source, even If it was not always the most cost
effective, we preserved water in areas where levels were lower We improved our networks, so we
could move water around more effectively, and invested in additional equipment at our water
treatment works, so we could get water to the nght place at the nght time

Our water qualty remained high and once again we achieved 99 97% comphance with the Drinking
Water Inspectorate’s standards We continued to deliver water at the right pressure and significantly
reduced supply interruptions However, interruptions are still higher than we would like and we expect
to reduce them further in the coming year To do this, we're investing in training, better incident
management and further improving our network

We continue to invest to ensure we provide the best water qualty This includes improvements to our
biggest water treatment works at Frankley, West Birmingham and a major investment programme at
Bamford, Derbyshire

We're also progressing with our catchment management programme, as a key part of our water
supply strategy We're encouraging farmers and other large land users to change the way they work,
so they reduce their impact on water resources For example, we've developed an online nutnent
budget calculator for farmers, which allows them to make quick and easy savings through efficient
fertiiser use If we can help farmers to apply fertiliser more efficiently, it saves them money and
reduces the water treatment we need to do

Customer experience

We recognuse that most of our customers don't have a choice about who supphes them That doesn't
mean they are not our first pnonty We recognise that we will not be in business if they are not
satisfied with the service we provide

Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mecharism (SIM) measures our customers' experience of dealing with us

and helps us to track our performance Qur SIM score 1s based on the number of times customers
have to contact us and the quality of service we deliver when they do
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While we're much better than average for the number of contacts, the quality of our service has not
been as good as it should be We've done a lot of work over the last year to put this nght Areas we've
focused on include

¢ fixing problems before customers have to contact us,

¢ resolving problems first ime, when they do have to contact us, and

« providing more ways to keep in touch with customers, for example by making better use of web
channels and using text messages to confirm appointments

We've also improved our bills They're now simpler to understand and we can add targeted messages
for customers, letting them know about different ways to pay or tips for saving water

Its also important to get direct feedback about how we're doing We're now surveying many
customers at the end of therr calls, asking whether therr problem was solved, how helpful our agent
was and for their general views of our service This process will be fully rolled out by the middle of
2012 and will inform us how to do better

We are starting to see the benefits of our actions with a continuous increase in SIM qualitative scores
through the first half of 2012 and an improvement in performance relative to other water companies in
the final quarter of the year

We have reduced the number of written complaints by 14%, which brings us to a record low number of
complaints This was helped by the actions we've taken and the milder winter

Customer written complamts per 1 0{)0 1 Average water and sewage bill |
properties .., e g s
- e oW g R I “\,

488 2012 ‘ 572 2011 £311 2012 - e st
Propertles at risk of low pressure per ] Average cost per day R
1 ooo propemes R co T
0.063632° ~ 007 3011 85p 2012 N
Flrst tlme call resolution

93.8%2012 97.5% 2011

Managing debt

We aim to keep bad debis down, while helping people who want to pay but are struggling to do so
Despite the weak economy and nsing unemployment, we were able to Imit bad debts to 2 2% of
sales, a similar level to last year

We have several tanffs and schemes to help people pay Dunng the year we piloted the Together
Scheme for people with debt problems, whereby we match the customer’s payments The WaterSure
tanff caps bills for people with low iIncomes, who use large amounts of water because of a medical
condition or because they have a big family We also have a scheme called Water Direct, which allows
customers to make payments directly from therr benefits During the year, we helped 139 people
through the Together Scheme, 6,347 through WaterSure and over 42,000 through Water Direct

The Severn Trent Trust Fund distnbutes money to people who are finding it difficuit to pay their bilis
We donated £3 5 million dunng the year We're also looking at ways to help vulnerable customers
more broadly, by working with the Citizens Advice Bureau to adwvise people about managing their
money and give them a sustainable solution to their debt issues
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Engaging with Customers

As we approach the next pnce review in 2014 (PR14), we’ll be working closely with customers and
other stakeholders to find out what they want from us and what they're willing to pay for Their input
will be a key part of the plan we put forward to Ofwat

As part of this, we've created the Severn Trent Water Forum with representatives from a wide range of
stakeholders The Forum will engage with us to help us develop our plan to ensure we take account of
their views. We will be holding workshops on 1ssues such as cimate change and how we manage
waste water We've also published a document called ‘Making the Right Choices’, which explains our
challenges, the choices we have to make and asks for our stakeholders’ input

Case study: Makmg the Right Chmces

Durlng 2012, Severn Trent Water wull be consultmg W|th customers and sﬁtakeholders on our
| investment plans for 2015-2020 We have publlshed a consultatlon document 'Maklng the

Right Choices' which can be downloaded from our websité Stakeholder workshops® WI|| be

held throughout the summer, supported by customer research and a wider programme of
[customer awareness and engagement

People

Our aim s to have people with the nght skills and the nght approach to work, personal development
and customer focus To encourage the behaviours we think are important, we launched a new Code of
Conduct in September 2011 across Severn Trent, called ‘Doing the Right Thing, the Severn Trent
Way’ This sets out our approach to corporate responsibility 1ssues ranging from health and safety, to
ethics and honesty, to delivering excellent customer service ‘Doing the Right Thing, the Severn Trent
Way' is supported by 15 group policies and their supporting standards and guidance notes

A safe and healthy workforce

Protecting the health and safety of our people and contractors 1s our number one prionty We were
pleased to have reduced the number of lost time tnjuries and can report that Severn Trent Water's
overall performance remains in the industry’s upper quartile

Our employee survey shows that we have a strong safety culture This year, 95% of our people said
they were clear about their role and their responsibility for doing their job safely, while 89% said that
we provided the nght support for them to do their job safely

One example of the actions we are taking was the launch of the Waste Water Services Safety
Improvement Strategy, with the aim of eliminating all accidents In the workplace This involves 12
safety improvement workstreams, which are being developed through teams of employees, and five
safety improvement projects By the end of the financial year, we had completed five of the
workstreams, including site standards and leadership behaviour, and two of the projects —
occupational road nsk and managing contractors

We focused on health and safety training and education during the year This included piloting the
MindSafety™ behavioural traning programme It teaches people about different states of awareness,
so they understand why we want them to work in certain ways and they can take responsibility for their
own safety Attendees found the programme changed their behaviour and made them think more
positively about health and safety

We've also worked closely with our supply chain partners to make sure we both priontise health and

safety performance This includes ensuring we have the same vision and values focused on health
and safety, the nght systems and training, and share lessons about safe working
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While we are rightly focused on safety, we also want to support our employees’ health More than 600
people attended our wellbeing days, which included blood pressure, cholesterol and diabetes checks
We also piloted a back pain clinic and launched a physiotherapy helpline

Engaging our people
Our annual employee survey once again showed that our people are posttive about working for us
Our overall Engagement Index revealed 75% of our employees remain positively engaged

Some notable results included
s 92% saying they took responsibility for ‘Doing the Right Thing the Severn Trent Way’,
¢ 87% being happy to go the extra mile at work, and
s 85% understanding how therr role contributes to customers’ experience

The survey also highlighted areas where we need to improve For example, only 39% said that the
changes we have made over the last 12 months were well implemented Our people also wanted
visibility of the Severn Trent Executive Committee and to see that it i1s leading the business effectively

We know that our employees often haven't had the chance to discuss with the Executive Committee
face to face what we're doing and why, and that these conversations can really help people to connect
their role to the aims of the business As a result, we have set up a roling 12 month programme of
discussions The aim 1s for members of the Executive Committee to meet around 1,500 people from all
parts of the business in small groups, in therr workplaces The conversations are open ended, so
employees can ask whatever they want and share ther view of the challenges and opportunities we
face As we can’t meet all of our people, we're encouraging the invitees to talk to their colleagues
before and after the meetings so everyone gains from the process

Improving our organisation

We continue to review the structure and organisation of our teams to deliver improved efficiency and
effectiveness For example, in November 2011 we changed our operating model in Waste Water This
involved moving around 750 people into new teams Each team covers a smaller geographic area but
now has more responsibility for customer service and repainng assets In the run up to the change we
trained our people so they could work on any of our assets in thewr area The model gives us a
platform on which to build service improvements

Following our successful move to Coventry, we refurbished our Shrewsbury and Derby offices and
adopted the same tools and ways of working, such as collaborative workspaces This ongoing
programme is giving our people a modern and effective working environment

:
P

{ Case study: New Shrewsbury office bunldmg improves, effectiveness
In January 2012, more than 200 of qur employees moved |nto our new;29 0 Ofsg ft office

buﬂdlng in Shrewsbury The Iayout of the mnovatwe bunldlng was de5|g edsih goﬁﬁfr%c*ﬁg‘h

s iy SR PREE  a TR
with key managers to enab|e the optnmal use of oft' ce areas agp tollabo%gt_ﬁg work~spa”c;e%
the best ‘mix 6f purpose—bu;lt facmtles as weII as an effectlve comman spgcﬁejat the hear}“of
lthe buiiding to encourage teams to meet and share ideas The result IS én engagmg

environment that has dramatlcaily |mproved employees workmg expenence and created an
| | opportunity for them to work ‘at their best every day _ |

Developing our people

We invest heavily in training and developing our people This year involved a significant amount of
technical training, as well as leadership development We continued to encourage our people to use
our ‘Safer Better Faster' approach to continuous improvement and we refocused our line manager
training to help them manage and engage their teams more effectively
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The talent review process 1s ongoing and we have assessed over 600 managers and potential leaders
this year We're increasingly creating individual development plans and moving people on our talent
st around the company to broaden their expenence

Our apprenticeship programme continues to grow, helping young people into work and giving us the
skills we’ll need in the future We currently have 81 apprentices — in customer relations, water and
waste water One of our apprentices — Michael Willams — won the national EEF Qutstanding
Achievement by a Final Year Apprentice Award, for introducing process changes that saved money for
the company by improving efficiency and reliabiity We plan to recruit another 20 apprentices durnng
2012

Diversity

Having the rnight people means having a sutably diverse workforce This year, we focused on
understanding gender 1ssues and conducted gender diversity research with women employed by
Severn Trent Water to understand more about the perceptions and experiences of women employees
This focused particularly on issues relating to job progression and the achievement of senior positions
The insights from the research will help us to improve our policies and practices in developing women
in our organisaton We plan to use the same methodology to explore ethric diversity In the near
future, so we can gain more Insights into this aspect of our workforce composition

Process
To deliver great service to our customers we are continuously improving our processes and
technology, whether 1it's for treating water, monitoring our network, or scheduling our staff

At our Minworth Sewage Treatment Works in Birmingham, we’re using an anaerobic ammonium
oxidation treatment process, which 1s new to the UK It's a more efficient biclogical treatment process
for waste water, which allows us to reduce the energy and chemicals we use

Another UK first 1s an activated sludge process known as HYBACS, which we're installing at
Ashbourne, Derbyshire This technique 1s used extensively in the Far East and allows us to process
higher volumes, with much lower energy use and on a much smaller footprint

We continued to add sensors to our telemetry system, which monitors the health and performance of
our network, checking, for example, the pressure and flow of water, water quality and reservorr levels
This gives us an early warning of problems, so we can proactively fix them with mimmum disruption for
customers

We also invested to exploit new and existing features in our SAP and telemetry systems to deliver a
better service to our customers. SAP now supports all our key processes and holds our operational
data allowing us to make better operational and investment decisions We have an ongoing
programme of improvement to increasingly exploit SAP's and other systems’ functionality to drive
performance

We have invested in giving our customers access to data from our telemetry and SAP systems
through our website, helping our customers find out if there 1s work going on n their area and what the
latest status 1s

We've also introduced a shared support organisation This brings together people from operations and
information systems, who between them understand how our employees, technology and processes
work Therr goal 1s to continuously improve, optimise and exploit SAP and other systems We're now
seeng step changes In our use of the system For example, we've reengineered our process for
handling bursts on private properties, so we can offer quicker service

New processes have also been added to automate operational fieldwork crews SAP holds data on
the skills of all our operational employees When a job 1s raised, the system automatically schedules a
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nearby work crew with the nght skills to go and fix the problem It also provides them with the
information they need, such as plans and maps, and records the ime and matenals used

Environment
Delivenng our environmental obligations 1s central to the way we work and has a real impact on our

customers and the communities in which they live and work The case studies on page 16 provide
details of our investment in renewable energy

Managing waste water
The driest 18 months on record contributed to a detenoration in our performance in the first six months

last year Pollution incidents rose and we suffered a higher level of sewage treatment works breaches
of consent

We responded by increasing our asset maintenance activities, inspection regimes and installed more
remote monitoring on our assets to help pre-empt potential falures This has improved our
performance from the summer onwards We also continued our policy of self reporting to the
Environment Agency, to raise our standards and highlight areas where we need to do better Even so,
for the year as a whole our performance fell short of the standards we aim for There were 445
reported pollution incidents (2011 353), 14 senous pollution incidents (2011 4) and our sewage
treatment works failing consent limit was 2 54% (2011 169%) Our maintenance and inspection
programme should deliver further improvements in the coming year

Successful delivery of our investment programme is very important in delivering good service to our
customers We've invested in major schemes, particularly in Gloucester and Leamington Spa, which
have improved our network reliability and have removed the rnisk of sewer flooding — one of the worst
service faillures that can happen to a customer - for around 150 properties, gardens and other areas
We've also tried to minimise disruption to our customers while we carned out this work, for example by
working with other utihity companies to reduce road closures In addition, we have a programme to
refurbish some of our largest sewage treatment works, which will make them more resilient and
improve river quality

The transfer of private drains and sewers to us on 1 October 2011 went smoothly, adding 37,000 km
to our existing 55,000 km network So far, we've had to do less reparr work than we expected and
customer feedback has been good We've cleared around 12,000 sewer blockages on the transferred
assets, which was 41% of the total blockages cleared since the transfer on 1 October 2011 We're
now seeing fewer blockages and better management of pollution incidents on these assets To help
the transfer, we reorganised our supply chain so we have fewer contractor companies looking after
our assets. Our remaining contractors have scaled up therr operations so they can handle the greater
workload

Deploying water resources wisely

Severn Trent I1s the only company to have targeted a significant reduction in leakage during AMPS We
were pleased to improve our performance agan during the year We cut leakage to 464 megalitres per
day (MI/d), compared to 497 MI/d last year and our target of 474 Mi/d

Leakage — megalitres per day (MI/d) - _ |
4642012 4972011 . V|

-

The Investment we've made in SAP and in our ‘Safer Belter Faster' approach has helped us to
improve our repair processes, so we can fix leaks more quickly We're also benefiting from our
investment In a system to help us improve detection of leaks

Customers also have an important part to play and our water efficiency programme helps them to
reduce therr usage For example, customers can use our website to view therr water usage and
understand where they can make savings We also offer water saving devices such as aerated taps
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and shower timers In addition, we work with schools and colleges to help them view and reduce therr
water usage, and with social housing providers to fit water efficient devices

This work ensures our customers continue to have among the lowest water usage in the UK Dunng
the year, our customers used an average of 125 litres per person each day, compared to the national
average of 148 litres

Cutting our carbon footprint

We've been investing in renewable energy for nearly a decade. Renewables provided 23 7% of the
electnaity we needed durnng the year and we're on track to meet our target of generating 30% of our
electricity by 2014/15

The ‘energy crop’ anaerobic digestion plant next to the Stoke Bardolph Sewage Treatment Works in
Nottinghamshire 1s the UK'’s first on an industnal scale It converts crops into electricity, using crops
grown on land unsuitable for food production, and has been so successful that it's received three
awards It's also given us valuable experience that 1s helping us to improve the performance of our
sludge anaerobic digestion plants

In 2013, our first large wind turbine will start generating electricity on land next to our Wanlip Sewage
Treatment Works in Leicestershire, with another at Newthorpe in Nottinghamshire due to come on
stream soon after These, and four others currently in planming, could generate 6% of our electncity
needs

We're also pursuing a gas-to-gnd project, which will allow us to provide cleaned up sewage gas to the
national grnd, and we are looking at several hydroelectric projects

Protecting biodiversity

Severn Trent has a role in protecting and enhancing biodiversity at our sites or sites affected by our
activittes We own or partly manage 37 sites of special scientific interest and work in partnership with
our tenants and other partners to safeguard them We have 21 rangers who manage our 12 public
access sites working with volunteers and organisations likke the RSPB and Wildlfe Trusts The sites
provide the opportunity to engage with customers whilst enhancing and protecting the sites for
nationally and internationally important species such as butterflies, water voles and tree sparrows

Finance

Our business 1s funded by receipts from customer bills, by raising money (debt) on the capital markets,
and by shareholders retaining equity in the business We aim to finance the company in an efficient
and sustainable way By keeping financing costs low we can keep customer bills low We currently
have an investment grade credit rating, with a stable outlook In January we successfully i1ssued a
£250 million, 30 year bond, with an interest rate of 4 875%, the lowest rate we have seen to date

Outlock

We continue to deliver on our programmes to raise standards and drive efficiency improvements We
are committed to enhancing our capital investment programme and delivenng improved customer
service and network performance Whilst we are seeing signs of improvement in our SIM performance,
industry benchmarks have moved forward and s must we In terms of prospects for regulatory and
industry change, Severn Trent remains at the forefront of industry thinking and we were pleased to
see some of our ideas reflected in consultattons from both our regulator and the UK Government We
will continue to make a positive contnbution to the debate Throughout our operations, our goal
continues to be to deliver long term sustainable growth This strategy, underpinned by a clear focus on
customers, people, environmental performance and shareholder value will continue.
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Business review
Looking forward

Severn Trent 1s committed to helping shape the future of the water industry so it 1s better able to meet
future challenges

In 2010 we published the first of our ‘Changing Course’ documents setting out our contribution to the
debate on the future of the industry We have been encouraged by how many of these ideas were
reflected in recent UK Government and Ofwat publications

In December 2011, the UK Government published ‘Water for Life’, its Water White Paper setting out its
strategic vision for the water industry. We welcome the objectives and strateqic direction of the White
Paper We are particularly encouraged by the White Paper's support for water trading, upstream
competition and catchment management We also welcome the UK Government's strong and explicit
acknowledgement of the need to maintain the confidence of investors

Earlier in May, Ofwat published 'Future price limits — statement of principles’ setting out how it
proposes to regulate the industry in the future We welcome this document and look forward to
working with Cfwat and others to achieve the best possible cutcomes for our stakeholders

In terms of general principles set out In ‘Future price imits’, we particularly support:

« Ofwat's overall objectives of creating a more targeted, proportionate and appropnate regulatory
framework which focuses on the most important outcomes,

+ the aim of reducing the regulatory burden and a move to a more targeted, risk based approach
for the next price review, and

+ more involvement from customer groups in the price setting process

We were also pleased to see the strong encouragement by Ofwat for water trading, building on the
policy direction set by ministers in the White Paper

We will continue to work censtruchively with the UK Government, our regulators and others to help
shape the water industry so it can meet future challenges

The challenges for the next 20 years

The challenge of the last 20 years was ensunng higher qualty The challenges for the next 20 will be
no less demanding, with chimate change putting resilience and secunty of supply at the top of the
agenda

‘Water for Life' emphasises the need for making the true social, economic and environmental cost of
water visible We think that's nght The UK has a growing water scarcity problem, particularly in the
south and east, which will affect everyone over the next two decades We all have a part to play in
maintaining supplies and delivering high standards

We're particularly pleased that the White Paper supports more focus on network mterconnection and
water trading, with the Environment Agency challenging companies’ Water Resource Management
Plans where alternative water sources are available Applied effectively, this will help to correct the
UK’s supply-demand imbalance and increase water trading Moving water across areas should be
cheaper and have less environmental impact than current practices, which increase carbon emissions
and capital intensive local iInvestment

We're also pleased to see support for the trading of abstraction licences Change in this significant
area needs full consultation, so the UK Government’'s timetable 1s sensible, with the new regime
expected to start in the mid to late 2020s

The encouragement to reduce pollution through catchment management, instead of expensive ‘end of
pipe’ solutions, I1s also welcome We're keen to share our experience of this over the last few years
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Taken together, these imihatives should improve the UK's resilience to drought and water scarcity,
while reducing carbon emissions There are also possible incentives for water companies to reduce
consumption and for the sustainable ‘economic level’ of leakage calculation to be revisited

The customers’ role

Customers have a key role in reducing water use The industry needs to change the way that
customers think about and value water, and encourage them to use less

We're pleased that the White Paper rules out universal metening Metering must make sense in the
context of an area’s supply and demand balance, and our expenence shows that it’'s more effective
alongside behavioural change

Affordability 1s also a key theme and there’s no doubt that customers want value for money Bills could
be lower If the industry were to tackle bad debts and follow the White Paper's principles, which
emphasise catchment management and smarter environmental solutions

Still more work to do

There are aspects of ‘Water for Life' that we like but that need further work, to keep regulation clear
and predictable

There’s no doubt that the sector will need to invest significant sums and will rely on the capital markets
for financing The UK Government recognises the need to reassure investors and has said that
reforms will be evolutionary, rather than revoluthonary It has alse avoided fundamental structural
change, such as legally separating companies’ retail operations Even so, there are areas where we
need to move cautiously and in full consultation with all stakeholders

One of the key talking points I1s the shift towards more competiion While the UK Government has
ruled out retall compehtion for domestic customers, it will take long overdue steps to improve retail
competition for business customers

Scrapping the ‘cost principle’ could promote competition but it needs to be replaced with something
more sensible We would like to see Ofwat working with the Office of Fair Trading to design a better
access price system, and not rushing to a conclusion that nsks passing the cost to domestic
customers. This may mean waiting to abolish the cost principle from law and not leaving the industry
in hmbo Changes to the Water Services licence to introduce upstream competition should also be
treated with caution, In case it's seen as weakening the fundamental business model

The case for change has been made

In summary, the case for change has been made and the direction is set ‘Water for Life’ 1s the start of
a process of breaking down the sector's ngidity, by creating space for competition and allowing more
flexibility, so we can meet the challenges of climate change, affordabiity and carbon reduction As an
industry, we should get behind it and work out the best outcomes

Sustainable financing

The water industry has been investing heawvily to renew ageing infrastructure, to meet growing demand
and to deliver environmental improvements Much has been achieved, but significant further
investment 1s needed

At the same time, public sector finances are stretched and there 1s growing compettion for limited
private sector funds that can be used to invest in infrastructure

Against this backdrop it 1s essential that the financial structure of the companies in the sectors enables
finance for the future iInvestment programme to be raised, when required, and at reasonable cost
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Up to now most of the additional finance that has been needed to fund their growing asset base has
been raised by borrowing and many companies have even reduced therr equity financing We think
that this financing model cannot be relied on indefimitely

There are nisks in highly geared financial structures and there may be limits to the capacity of the debt
market to contnue to provide low cost finance In addition, one company getting into financial
difficulties could have long term impacts on the financial market's confidence in the regulatory
framework and its assessment of risk in the utility sectors

The financial and banking crisis in 2008, the credit crunch that followed, and more recently the
sovereign debt cnsis and associated turmoil in financital markets all underline that there may be
benefits from a lower rnisk approach to financing in the sector, iIn which not all future finance 1s raised
from borrowing

Severn Trent has worked with National Gnd to examine how to make the financing of the utility sector
more sustainable in the longer term We think that action needs to be taken to encourage additional
equity financing, rather than waiting for problems to develop We will shortly be publishing a report
propasing modest but important evolutionary change
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Business review
Finance

The general economic climate 1n which our business operates has seen no real improvement over the past
year and we have sought, since the start of the financial cnsis in 2008, to retain a conservative view on
management of our cost base and financing In these circumstances, we were pleased to see that the ability of
our customers to pay their bills did not see any serious detenioration, and indeed our level of bad debt charges
mproved shghtly i the year as we continue our proactive efforts in this area  Costs remam a key focus and
while we saw Increases In environmental taxes and other charges we do not control, our performance on
controlled costs was good

Access to long term secure financing in these economic conditions has, since 2008, remained a key focus and
our actions over the last year reflect this We renewed our five year £500 million revolving credit facility (RCF)
with 11 banks, of which £200 million 1s held jointly with Severn Trent Plc, 1ssued a 30 year Sterling bond at
4 875%, the lowest rate we have seen to date, and we called in early some £150 6 milhion of our bonds due for
redemption in 2014, the year of the next price review, a time which traditionally has been difficult for regulated
water companies to refinance in public bond markets This latter achon, which raises a one off interest charge
of £16 5 million in the year, reduces considerably the risk of not being able to refinance our bonds that were
due in 2014 and will bring future economic benefits

We therefore end the year with a well-financed and stronger balance sheet, which has given us the opportunity
to Increase over the next three years our investment in the networks by £150 million and propose to return
£150 million to shareholders After these actions the group will still retain a strong balance sheet

Results

Turnover in Severn Trent Water increased by 4 9% n 2012 to £1,457 5 milkion Sales prices were increased by
inflation from 1 Apnl 2011 which gave rise to an increase n turnover of £73 1 milhon Consumption from
metered customers was lower year on year reducing turnover by £10 5 millon New growth and meter optants
ncreased turnover by £0 2 million and there were other increases amounting to £4 9 milhion

Operating profit before exceptional items (underlying operating profit) increased by £18 million from the
previous year to £5152 milion Direct operating costs increased by £66 4 millon Employment costs
increased by 2 1% to £202 4 millon as headcount decreased by 1 7% but the average employee cost
increased by 3 9% Hired and contracted costs increased by £36 1 million to £155 6 million partly as a result of
the increased work on leakage reduction Raw matenals and consumables at £46 8 million were 1 3% higher
than the same perod in the prior year Bad debts were 1 9% lower at £31 2 million, representing 2 2% of
turnover (2011 2 3%) A limited increase of 2 5% in power costs (excluding quasi taxes) to £51 8 million
reflected the success of our strategy of fixing these costs through our supply contract and by using energy
swaps Quasi taxes, which comprise rates, service charges and the CRC, increased by £13 5 million to £107 6
milion, mainly due to the introduction of the CRC There were also additional operating costs of £4 7 million
related to the ownership of private drains and sewers, which were transferred on 1 October 2011 Other
operating costs reduced by £1 0 milhion to £37 8 million Labour and related overheads capitalised were £16 9
milhon higher than in 2010/11, mainly due to the higher level of capital expenditure in 2611/12 Infrastructure
renewals expenditure increased by £29 6 millon and depreciation increased by £8 6 millon including £3 7
million in respect of the wnte off of an expermental sludge dryer

There was an exceptional credit to operating profit of £10 3 million {2011 charge of £130 milon) This
comprised an exceptional credit of £21 8 million (2011 nil) ansing from the agreement to close the group’s
defined benefit pension schemes to future accrual with effect from 31 March 2015, and costs ansing from the
ongoing programme to restructure and realgn the business which resulted in an exceptional charge of £11 5
rmillion {2011 £13 0 millon)
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Net interest payable fell by £8 6 millon from the prior year to £241 0 million Interest receivable and similar
income fell by £19 9 million as the group closed out a cross currency swap during May 2010 and received
£20 5 miullion proceeds The swap was not recogmised under UK GAAP and hence the proceeds represented a
gain to the group which was included in interest receivable and similar income in the pnor year interest
payable on bank loans and overdrafts and interest payable on other loans decreased In total by £7 1 million In
the pnor year a £31 0 million charge arose on the termination and redesignation of an economic hedge of a
medium term note [n the current year a cost arose following the group’s i1ssuance of £250 0 million 4 875%
Guaranteed 30 year Notes under its Euro Medium Term Note Programme. Part of the proceeds were used to
redeem £150 6 million 5 25% Notes which were due for repayment in 2014 This resulted in an interest cost of
£16 5 milion Interest payable on finance leases fell by £14 & milion as the group rolled over an interest rate
swap in December 2010, and instead of paying a cash settlement of £13 4 miflion, re-negotiated the terms of a
finance lease with the same counterparty The swap was not recognised under UK GAAP and hence this was
recognised as an increase In the finance lease creditor and finance lease interest payable during the prior
year

The total tax charge for the year was £177 0 milhon (2011 £37 1 million charge) of which current tax
represented a charge of £68 5 million (2011 £57 4 milhon charge) and deferred tax a charge of £108 5 million
(2011 £94 5 milion credit), including an exceptional credit of £565 7 million {2011 £53 8 million credit) ansing
from the reduction in corporation tax rate from 26 0% to 24 0% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 (2011 reduction in
corporation tax rate from 28 0% to 26 0% with effect from 1 Apnl 2011) The current tax charge before
adjustments in respect of prior years represents 26 0% (2011 26 1%) of the group’s profit before tax Profit for
the financial year was £107 5 milion (2011 £305 4 millon) The group measures it's return on capital using the
ratio of post tax return on regulatory capital value, which 1s calculated as current cost operating profit (before
other operating iIncome} less tax payable, over average regulatory capital value For the year ended 31 March
2012 post tax return on capital was 5 7% (2011 5 9%)

Capital structure
The group 1s funded using a mixture of equity and debt (including fixed rate, index-linked and floating rate)

2012 2011

£m £m
Cash and short term deposits 09) (10 5)
Bank loans 610 3 6027
QOther loans 3,3356 3,106 6
Obligations under finance leases 218.9 266 7
Net debt 4,163 9 39655
Equity shareholder's funds 1,134 0 1,362 4
Total capital 5,297 9 5,327 9

Net debt at 31 March 2012 was £4,163 9 million (2011 £3,965 5 million) Of the net debt 61 2% (2011: 63 0%)
was represented by fixed interest borrowings and 67 0% (2011 67 7%) was represented by amounts payable
after five years Net debt as calculated in the regulatory accounts, as a percentage of year end regulatory
capital value at 31 March 2012 was 58 7% (2011 58 2%)

Cash flows

Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of £844 7 milion {2011 £827 1 million) Net interest paid was
£193 1 milion (2011 £172 0 milhion) Net investing activities used £471 7 million (2011 £461 9 million) which
mainly included capital expenditure to meet the company’s obligations under the AMPS5 capital programme
Dividend outflows amounted to £266 0 million (2011 £153 6 million)
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Treasury management

The group’s treasury affars are managed centrally as part of the Severn Trent Plc group and in accordance
with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury operation’s primary role I1s to manage
kquidity, funding, investment and the group’s financial risk, including risk from volatility in interest and, to a
lesser extent, currency rates and counterparty credit nisk Its activitles are subject to a set of controls
commensurate with the magnitude of the borrowings and investments under ts management The Severn
Trent Water Limited board ('the board’) determines matters of treasury policy and its approval I1s required for
certain treasury transactions The group uses financial derivatives solely for the purposes of managing nsk
associated wath financing its normal business activities The group does not hold or issue denvative financial
instruments for financial trading purposes

The group uses a number of currency swaps and interest rate swaps to redenominate external borrowings into
the currencies and interest rate coupon required for group purposes, and energy swaps to fix future expected
electricity costs The group’'s policy for the management of interest rate nsk 15 to have a balanced portfolio of
debt with a mix of term and interest rate structures that diversifies its nsk and 1s appropnate to the long life of
its asset base The detaills are perodically reviewed to respond to changing market and regulatory conditions
and with regard to regulatory pronouncements Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s fully
hedged, the group’s business does not involve significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions The
group has £0 9 million in cash and cash equivalents A new £500 milion Revolving Credit Facility was agreed
in October 2011, of which £200 million 1s held jointly with Severn Trent Plc In addition, a new ten year £100 0
million bilateral bank facility was agreed in March 2012 Cash 1s invested in deposits with highly rated banks
and hquidity funds and the list of counterparties 1s regularly reviewed and reported to the board The group’s
policy for the management of interest rate nsk requires that no less than 45 0% of the group’s borrowings
should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate agreements
The group’s net interest charge, excluding net finance costs from pensions, was covered 3 7 times (2011 35
times) by profit before interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and 2 2 times (2011 2 1 times) by
underlying profit before interest and tax

The group's long term credit ratings are
Long term ratings

Moody's A3
Standard & Poor's BBB+

Further details of the group’s borrowings, investments and financial instruments are contained in note 12 to the
financial statements

Investment

The financial year 2011-12 was the second year of the AMPS perod (covering 2010-15) Dunng the financial
year, the group invested £498 5 milhon (excluding contributions received towards infrastructure assets) in fixed
assets.

Critical accounting policies

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, the directors are required to make certain
judgements, estmates and assumptions that they believe are reasonable based on the information available
The more significant judgements and key assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty are summarised
below

Depreciation and carrying amounts of tangible fixed assets

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for tangible fixed assets requires estimates
to be made of the useful lives of the assets. The estimates are based on engineering data and the group's
experience of similar assets Details are set out in ncte 1d) to the financial statements
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Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such
benefits requires assumptions to be made concerming long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension
Increases, Investment returns and longevity of current and future pensioners Changes In these assumptions
could significantly impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The group makes
assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuares
Details of the assumptions made are set out in note 14 to the financial statements

Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgements to be made regarding the result of
negotiations with, and enquinies from, tax authonties The assessments made are based on advice from
independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authorities Assessing the
extent to which the deferred tax provision should be discounted requires judgements to be made regarding the
reversal of timing differences and the discount rate to be applied

Unbilled revenue

The company raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its right to receive revenue n line with
the hmits established by the penodic regulatory prnce review processes For water and waste water customers
with water meters, the amount recognised 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the
sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and the year end Meters are read on a
cyclical basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last
billing to the end of the financial year The estimated usage i1s based on histonical data, judgement and
assumptions

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are made against trade recewvables based on histoncal expenience of levels of recovery from
accounts In a particular ageing category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estimated leve! of
recovery which could impact operating results
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements of Severn Trent Water Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Principal activities
The company Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiary undertakings (together ‘the group’) are the provision
and the treatment of water and the removal of waste water in the UK There have not been any significant
changes to the company’s principal activities in the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date
of this report, of any likely major changes in the company’s activities in the next year

Business review

The company 1s required to set out In this report a farr review of the business of the company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2012, the position of the company at the end of the financial year and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company (known as a ‘business review’) The
information that fulfils the requirements of the business review can be found in the following sections of the
business review

Review of results pages 5-23

Strategy and growth pages 7-8 and 17-19
Operational performance pages 9-16
Financial performance pages 20-23

KPls page 84

Principal nsks and uncertainties are detalled on pages 32 and 33 of the Governance regport

Dividends and reserves

The company’s dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory
obligations The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year further to consideration of these obligations
The ordinary dividend declared by the company in 2012 amounted to £266 0 million (2011 £153 6 million)

Transfers to reserves are set out in note 16 to the financial statements

Directors
The directors of the company who served during the year and up to the date of this report are set out below

Tony Ballance
Bernard Bulkin*
Richard Davey™
Andrew Duff*
Gordon Fryett*
Martin Kane™*
Martin Lamb*
Michael McKeon
Baroness Noakes*
Andy Smith
Tony Wray

* non-executive director
** non-executive director with effect from 1 January 2012
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Directors’ interests

All of the directors at the year end are also directors of Severn Trent Plc In accordance with the UKLA Listing
Rule 9 8 6, therr interests In the share capital of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed In the Annual Report and
Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2012

None of the directors retain any notifiable interest in the shares of the company or any other subsidiaries as at
31 March 2012

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus scheme
Remuneration for executive directors comprises the following elements

base salary and benefits,

annual bonus scheme and share matching plan,
long term incentive plan, and

penston plan

As all directors are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, details of therr emoluments can be found in the Annual
Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc

Martin Kane was promoted to the role of Chief Executive Officer — Severn Trent Services with effect from 1
January 2012 From that date his salary was increased to £250,600 and a disturbance allowance of £29,400
has been put in place in recognition of the international nature of his role and Martin’s continued board duties
Following hus promotion Martin became a non-executive director of Severn Trent Water Limited and his salary
Is apporttoned between Severn Trent Services and Severn Trent Pic

Martin's bonus, LTIP and Share Matching Plan award levels remain unchanged However, the structure of his
bonus award will change to reflect the balance of his duties in Severn Trent Services and his wider board
responsibilities

As outhned in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts, the non-executive Chairman, Andrew Duff,
and non-executive plc directors, do not participate in the company’s incentive arrangements, 1 e annual bonus
or share schemes

Base salaries and benefits

Base salaries are reviewed annually for each director and are determined with regard to the market median
salary for similar roles in publicly quoted utiity companies of a comparable size, that so far as practicable, are
undertaking similar work activites Salaries are set with reference to individual performance, experience and
contribution together with developments In the relevant employment market and internal relativities

In addition directors receive a benefits package which contractually includes car allowance, membership of
company pension scheme or cash allowance in lieu, prnivate medical insurance, life assurance and incapacity
benefits scheme Directors may also take advantage of the Severn Trent flexible benefit scheme open to all
employees

Annual Bonus Scheme

The directors’ Annual Bonus Scheme ('ABS’) focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which are
intended to drnive the creation of operational efficiencies and mprovements in business performance The
bonus scheme operates on a balanced scorecard of measures based on the company Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs), which include operatiocnal performance, leakage and customer service. The scheme
attnbutes a points score to each KPI and bonus outturn 1s determined by reference to the aggregate number of
points awarded across all the KPls Bonus targets were set and measured for the penod 1 Apnl 2011 to 31
March 2012
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Annual Bonus 2011/2012
In 2011/2012 the Chief Executive and Finance Director have 10% of theirr bonus opportunity linked to the

performance of Severn Trent Services and all directors have 10% of their bonus opportunity measured against
a set of personal performance metrics

The directors’ Annua! Bonus Scheme (ABS) encourages improved performance, with targets established by
the Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Committee to align executive directors’ interests with shareholders

The maximum annual bonus opportunity for the executive directors was 120% of salary For the achievement
of target performance, 60% of salary 1s awarded The table on the following page shows the extent to which
the KPI targets were achieved during 2011/12

201112 | 2011112 Points

Key Area KPI | Measure target actual awarded
Employee 1 | Lost Time Incidents per 100,000 hours worked 034 03 226
2 | Employee motivation- Quest (engagement index) 70% 75% 137

Customer 3 | Water Quahty (Test Failure Rate)-ppm 189 225 0
4 | Service Incentive Mechamsm- Qualitative 4 08 396 0

5 | Service Incentive Mechanism- Quantitative 35 205 25

6 | Unplanned Interruptions per 1,000 properties 75 11 12 0

7 | Properties at nsk of low pressure per 1,000 properties 0 09 0 06 143

8 | First Time Job Resolution (COSC)% 9540% | 93 83% 0

9 | Non performance against requlatory obligations % 6% 6% 100

Financtal 10 | Capex (net) versus FD- % Qutperformance 4 80% 4 31% 90
11 | Capex Process Quality {Points) 850 972 100

12 | Debtor Days 342 358 50

13 | Opex (UK GAAP) £560m £548m 26

14 | Efficient Biling Factor 3353m | 3306m 130

Environment 15 | Poltution Incidents (cat 1,2 &3) 361 458 0
16 | Sewer Flooding Incidents- Other Causes 0148 0141 138

17 | Sewage Treatment works- falling consent imits 1 54% 2 54% 0

18 | Supply Availability 94 90% | 96 50% 148

19 | Net Energy Use- GWh 687 679 123

20 | Leakage ml/d- Post MLE 474 464 141

The bonus outturn In respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced
scorecard of measures, based on the KPls The Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Committee beheves that the
use of the Severn Trent Water KPIs continues to be both an effective and challenging annual bonus metric and
meets the needs of the business The bonus entitlement was determined by reference to the aggregate
number of points awarded across all the KPis The targets taken together are considered by the board to have

an impact on the longer term financial performance of the company and a number of them are reported to
Ofwat

The table above shows the points awarded by the Remuneration Committee for bonus purposes under each of
the 20 KPIs in relation to the 2011/2012 ABS As a consequence the bonus award was 41 2%

The actual bonus payments awarded to each director incorporate amounts in respect of personal targets and,

in the case of the Chief Executive and Finance Director, Severn Trent Services’ performance The bonus
payments awarded are detalled overieaf

Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012 26




Director Value of bonus award £
Tony Ballance 111,268
Martin Kane 139,775
Michael McKeon 238,217
Andy Smith 144,419
Tony Wray 305,976

Half of the above bonus awards 1s deferred into shares to be held for three years following payment and
subject to continued employment If the executive 1s summanly dismissed without notice under his/her
employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited 1n all other cases of cessation of employment the
deferred bonus 1s not lost and the shares automatically vest on the dealng day after the cessation of
employment

For several years, the rules of the ABS have provided that the Committee may reclam (‘clawback’) some or all
of the after tax part of any bonuses awarded to executive directors If it transpires that the bonus calculation
was based on calculations which are subsequently demonstrated to be matenally incorrect In the light of the
publication of the UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Governance Code’), the Remuneration Committee
considered the structure of the company's clawback provisions (including those in the LTIP and Share
Matching Plan ({SMP’)), looking at best practice and evolving market practice As a result, the clawback
provisions are being amended as follows for the forthcoming year’s annual bonus payments and future awards
under the LTIP and SMP

s the circumstances which could tngger clawback are being widened to include gross musconduct
(resulting n dismissal) and an error in the calculation of the performance condition, in addition to the
existing misstatement of financial results,
there will be a pernod of three years following payment in which the clawback could be applied, and

+ the clawback should be satisfied by a reduction being made to future annual bonus payments which
would otherwise be paid or the next vesting of share based awards In the event that a cash clawback
were necessary, this would normally be to reclaim the net of tax amounts enly

Annual bonus payments to executive directors are not pensionable The Remuneration Committee determines
whether it 1s appropnate to release the shares in ‘good leaver’ cases Full details of executive director bonus
awards for the year ended 31 March 2012 are shown In the table of directors’ emoluments in the Severn Trent
Plc Annual Report and Accounts.

Annual Bonus Targets for 2012/2013

The Committee has reviewed the operation of the plan and concluded that it should operate on a similar basis
for 2012/13 However, under the Severn Trent Water element, a change I1s being made to reduce the number
of KPIs from 20 to 10 This change reflects that Ofwat has published a revised suite of KPls against which they
have indicated that they will assess water companies, and it 1s therefore appropnate to measure the company's
performance consistently with those externally published measures of success

As a result of hus promotion to Chief Executive Officer — Severn Trent Services, Martin Kane’s bonus will now
comprise 70% linked to the performance of Severn Trent Services, 10% linked to the performance of Severn

Trent Water and 20% on personal performance For the other executive directors, their bonus weightings wall
remain unchanged

Share Matching Plan

Under the SMP directors are eligible to receive matching share awards over those shares which have been
acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme as described above Further detalls
of the SMP can be found in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Long Term Incentive Plan

Directors may also participate in the Severn Trent LTIP Under this plan condional awards of performance
shares are made to directors up to an annual maximum mit This seeks to reward the creation of long term
value and align the company’s incentive arrangements with the interests of shareholders Further details are
contained in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Share Incentive Plan

A company-wide Share Incentive Plan {‘SIP’) operates which includes a performance condition based on the
award of points for the KPls For the year 2011/12 awards of shares to the value of £309 will be made to all
ehgible employees

Shareholding Requirements

The company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to buld and
maintain a mimmum holding of shares in the company The Chief Executive 1s expected to build and maintain a
holding of shares to the value of 1 5 x base salary and other executive directors 1 x base salary Executive
directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they receive through the LTIP and other
share based plans and good progress 1s being made to meet the guideline holdings Full details of the directors
shareholding requirements can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc

Directors’ and officers’ indemnities

The company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance in respect of legal action that might be
brought against its directors and officers In accordance with the company's Articles of Association, and to the
extent permitted by law, in November 2011 the company indemnified each of its directors and other officers of
the group against certain habihities that may be incurred as a result of their positions with the group Severn
Trent does not have In place any indemnities for the benefit of the auditor

Policy on the payment of creditors

The company either uses its own standard terms and conditions entitlted ‘General Conditions of Contract
relating to the supply of Goods/Services or the Execution of Work’ (copies are available from the Purchasing
Depariment, Severn Trent Water Limited, Severn Trent Centre, PO Box 5309, Coventry CV3 9FH) or nationally
agreed terms and conditions of contract such as NEC Engineering and Construction Contract Third Edition
June 2005 (incorporating NEC Amendments dated June 2006) and NEC3 Professional Services Contract June
2005.

Terms of payment are stated on each purchase order issued by the company Suppliers are able to negotiate
their own payment terms which can differ from these, as part of the tender process Trade creditors at the year
end reflected 19 2 days purchases (2011 23 8 days)

Charitable and political donations

Donations to chartable organisations during the year amounted to £57,023 (2011 £143,836) Severn Trent
Water's policy 1s not to make any donations for political purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU poitical parties
or incur EU political expenditure. Accordingly we have not made any political donations or incurred any
poltical expenditure in the financial year under review.

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development i1s set out in note 2 to the accounts on page 41 Details of the
research and development activity undertaken by the company during the year are set out in the operating and
financial review on pages 5 to 23

Employees
The average number of employees during the year was 5,162 (2011 5,237)
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Severn Trent Water believes that a diverse and inclusive culture s a key factor in being a successful business
Apart from ensuning an individual has the ability to do the job we do not discnminate in any way and make
every effort to ensure that those with disabilities are able to be employed by us We endeavour to retann
employees n the workforce iIf they become disabled, we make all reasonable adjustments to their role and, f
necessary, look for redeployment opportunities to support them in seeking an alternative role within Severn
Trent Water We ensure that training, career development and promotion opportunities are available for all our
employees irrespective of their gender, race, age or disability

Regulation: ‘Ring fencing’

In accordance with the requirements of Ofwat, the board confirmed that, as at 31 March 2012, it had avallable
to it sufficient nghts and assets, not including financial resources, which would enable a special admunistrator
to manage the affairs, business and property of the company in order that the purposes of a special
administration order could be achieved if such an order were made

Regulation: ‘Cross directorships’

It 1s the policy of the company that directors and employees of the company may be directors of related
companies when this I1s In the best interests of the company, and where appropnate arrangements are in place
to avoid conflicts of interest

Conflict of interests

The board has a full process In place to authonse situational conflicts in accordance with the provisions.of the
Companies Act 2006 For any actual or potential conflicts, the following procedure has been adopted by the
board to consider and, If it sees fit, to authonse situations where a director has an interest that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the interests of the company

¢ the director will notify the Chairman and Company Secretary of the actual or potential conflict,
the Severn Trent Plc Nominations Committee will consider the notification and determine whether it
needs to be proposed to a board meeting for authonisation, and

» the conflict will be considered by the board at a scheduled board meeting

Full details of the conflict will be sent to directors In advance of the meeting If there 1s a major conflict or it 1s
decided that authonisation should not wait until the next scheduled meeting, the board would be asked to
authorise the conflict by way of written resolution

In addition to reviewing any conflicts notified and proposing them for authorisation by the board, the Severn
Trent Plc Nominattons Committee monitors changes to previously notified conflicts and any conditions
imposed Half yearly reports are made to the board of all directors’ confiicts and directors are reminded from
time to time of their obligations An annual review of conflicts 1s carried cut and this 1s incorporated inte the
year end process of venfying directors’ interests

Going concern

The company operates in an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competiton Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price imits that it beheves will
enable the water compames to finance ther activites As a consequence the directors believe that the
company and the group are well placed to manage their business nisks despite the current uncertain economic
outlook The company and the group are funded for their Investment and cash flow needs at least for the next
year

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources to

conhnue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly we continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts
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Auditors

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to continue as auditor and, in accordance with Section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006, are deemed to be reappointed

In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the company at the date when this report was
approved

» so far as each of the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditor 1s unaware, and

¢ each of the directors has taken ali the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to
make himself/fherself aware of any relevant audit mnformation and to establish that the company's
auditor 1s aware of that information

Relevant audit information means information needed by the company’s auditor in connection with prepanng
therr report. This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section
418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the board

B st

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary
29 May 2012
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Governance

Severn Trent Governance

Severn Trent Plc 1s the ultimate holding company of Severn Trent Water Limited Since March 2007, as part of
the strategy of focusing on water, the boards of directors of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Limited
have been identical

Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Limited operate as distinct legal entities The boards have regard to
the Severn Trent Plc Board Governance document and the Severn Trent Water Limited Matters Reserved to
the Board and are assisted through the management of separate agendas, meetings and minutes by Company
Secretanat and are advised in their meetings by the Company Secretary where appropriate

The relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited, the regulated entity, and our non-regulated businesses
such as Severn Trent Services are monitored and controlled to ensure that we comply with our Ofwat
obligations on arm’s length transactions

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2012, Severn Trent Plc was comphant in its application of the Governance
Code ssued by the Financial Reporting Council, which replaced the Combined Code, on Corporate
Governance

The Severn Trent Plc board has established an effective committee structure to assist in the discharge of its
responsibilities to the group The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees
comply with the provisions of the Governance Code and are avallable for inspection, together with the terms of
reference of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee and Executive Committee, on the Severn Trent Plc
website (www severntrent com) or on written request from the Company Secretary at Severn Trent Centre, PO
Box 5308, Coventry CV3 9FH

Severn Trent has made solid progress in implementing the key components of its governance framework
which are based on clear organisational structure and decision making, sound policies and standards, and
assurance of the outcomes The board and other key stakeholders need a transparent methodology which
delivers and validates the outcome of activities

The company expects roles to be performed in line with the specific annual job objectives Employees
performing their roles properly, preparing and reporting outcomes on time and to the required standard i1s a key
component in our system of internal control

The company continues to embed the compliance, verification and performance activities in Severn Trent
These are within business areas and sometimes within discrete functions These confirm that operational
activities have been performed properly.

Lastly, the company mantains an independent perspective on the overall framework by obtaining confirmation
that the governance structure 1s working properly In Severn Trent, this 1s cbtained pnmanly from the Internal
Audit function.

In order to provide an appropriate understanding of how these responsibiities come together for Severn Trent,

the company has developed a description of the key elements over which assurance 1s required by the board.
Internal Audit deliver an audit plan to confirm that key business nsks are being mitigated
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Operating structure

Day to day operational prionties within Severn Trent Water are led by the Chief Executive of Severn Trent Plc
and his executive management team, who together compnse the Executve Committee During the year the
Executive Committee compnised the executive directors and senior executive managers responsible for key
central and operational areas

The Executive Committee oversees the development and performance of the Severn Trent strategy It also has
accountabihty for achieving business results Dunng the year the Executive Committee structured its meetings
to focus on strategy and business management, policy and planning and operational performance

The operational structure aligns the organisatton with the processes that matter to customers and drives
greater efficiency

Internal control and risk management

The board has overall responsibility for the group’'s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control including financial,
operational, comphance and risk management at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the
Governance Code and the guidance set out within it The system of internal control 15 reviewed for
effectiveness and adequacy

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of failure to achieve business
objectives

The board reviews rnisk management and the adequacy of the system of internal control through the Severn
Trent Plc Audit Committee The board also keeps under review ways in which to enhance the control and audit
arrangements n the group The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from the Chief Executive
on the significant nsks faced by the group These include an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over
each of those nsks and an action plan to improve controls where necessary Any significant control
weaknesses that have been identified are also reported to the Audit Committee The Internal Audit department
provides objective assurance and advice on risk management and control The external auditors also report on
significant control 1ssues to this committee

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
principal nsks faced by the company and its subsidiary undertakings have been in place for the year to 31
March 2012 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report

Key elements of the group’s processes and procedures are

clearly defined and communicated strategic and business objectives,

an organisation structure with clear lines of accountability and responsibility,

performance management and succession planning systems,

regular, structured reviews of business nsk by senior management and the Executive,

a scheme of delegated authonty, approval of plans, budgets and significant investments,

robust business planning including the identification and implementation of relevant improvement plans,
and

¢ monthly reporting and montoring of financial results, regulatory comphance and other operational
performance indicators, and independent assurance provided by both internal and external auditors

Principal risks and uncertainties
The board considers the principal nsks and uncertainties affecting the business activities of the company to be
those detailed below
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Risks arising from our business model:

¢ We may not be able to achieve all of the challenging targets agreed with Ofwat for our business plan
from 2010 to 2015 resulting in reduction in funding

« We may be unable to sufficiently improve our performance in relation to customer service in order to
delver what our customers tell us they want

¢ We may suffer operational failure in our waste water operations which results in damage to the local
environment

s Qur assets or processes may fall resulting in iInjury to an employee, contractor, customer or member of
the public

» We may fail to meet all of our regulatory targets including targets from Ofwat in relation to ongoing
operational performance of our assets

« Fallure of certain key assets may result in inability to provide a continuous supply of qualty water to
large populations within our area, or in damage to third party property

Legal Risks:

e We may be unable to effectively anticipate and/or influence future developments in the UK water
industry resulting 1n our business plans becoming unsustainable

+ The regulatory landscape 1s complex and subject to on-going change There i1s a nsk that processes
may fail or that our processes may not effectively keep pace with changes in legislation

Financial Risks:
+ The current cnisis in the eurozone may increase the difficulties associated with obtaining funding for the
Group at similar rates to those assumed in our business plans
e Changing demographics and fluctuations in the investment market may affect our ability to fund
pensions promises sustainably
« Counterparties with whom we have invested money may fail putting our mvestment at rnisk

These nsks and other significant nsks are managed through our established Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) process This requires nisk owners to consider possible causes and potential impacts of each nsk and to
assess the adequacy of mitigating controls in place Where additional mitigation 1s needed, rnisk improvement
actions are put in place and these are tracked to monitor that they are completed to schedule and have the
anticipated impact to improve the management of the risk Significant nsks 1dentified within our ERM process
are reported to the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee and to the Board on a regular basis
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that
the company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information

included on the company's website Legislation n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Severn Trent Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Severn Trent
Water Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
compnse the group and parent company profit and loss
accounts, the group and parent company balance sheets,
the group cash flow statement, the group reconciiation of
net cash flow to movement in net debt, the group and parent
company statement of total recogrised gains and losses, the
group and parent company reconciliatton of movements in
shareholder's funds and the related notes 1 to 20 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparatton 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditer's
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responstbility
to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’
responsibiities, the dwrectors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they gwe a true and far view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Iretand) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit iInvolves obtaming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the group's and the
parent company's circumstances and have been
consistently applled and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to Identify matenal
mconsistencies with the audiled financial statements If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s
and the parent company's affarrs as at 31 March
2012 and of the group’s and the parent company's
profit for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion the information given In the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

. the parent company financial stalements are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and

explanations we require for our audit

CN sl

Chnistopher Robertson (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and behalif of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, Umited Kingdom

29 May 2012
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Profit and loss accounts

Year ended 31 March 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m Em £m
Turnover 1,457 5 1,389 8 1,457 5 1,389 8
Operating costs before exceptional items 2 {946 4) {880 0) (958 8) (891 0)
Exceptional operating mcomef{costs) 2 103 (130) 10.3 (13 0)
Total operating costs 2 {936 1) (893 0) (948 5) {904 Q)
Other income 41 36 41 386
Operating profit before exceptional items 5152 5134 5028 502 4
Exceptional operating incomef{costs) 2 103 {130) 103 {13 0)
Operating profit 5255 500 4 513 1 489 4
Income from shares in other group undertakings - - 35 -
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets 2 - 175 - 175
Net interest payable before exceptional tems 4 {224.5) {249 6) (225 7) (248 6)
Exceptional interest costs 4 (16 5) - (16 5) -
Net interest payable 4 {241 0) {249 6) (242 2) (248 6)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2845 2683 274 4 2583
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities - current tax 5 (68 5) (57 4} (67 5} (56 8)
- deferred tax 5 (108 5) 945 {108 5) 94 5
Taxation 5 (177 0) 371 (176 0} 377
Profit for the financial year 16 107 5 3054 984 296 0
The results anse from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year
Statements of total recognised gains and losses
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Profit for the financia! year 1075 3054 98 4 296 0
Actuanal (loss)gain (105 7) 371 (105 7) 371
Tax credit{charge} on actuanal loss/gain 283 {9 6) 283 (9 6)
Adjustment In respect of tax rate change on deferred tax (2 9) (6 2) (29} (6 2)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions (29) - (29) -
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 243 3267 152 3173
Reconcihations of movements 1n shareholder’s funds
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 1075 305 4 98 4 2960
Dwidends 6 (266 0} (153 6) {266 0) (153 6)
Retained profit for the financial year {158 5) 1518 {167 6) 142 4
Share based payments 27 28 27 28
Net actuanal (loss)/gain (77 4) 275 (77 4) 275
Adjustment tn respect of tax rate change on deferred tax (2 9) (62) (29) (6 2)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions (29) - (29) -
Net (reduction in}addition to shareholder's funds {239 0} 1759 (248 1) 166 5
Opening shareholder's funds 1,362 4 1,186 5 1,568 7 1,402 2
Closing shareholder's funds 1,123 4 1,362 4 1,320 6 15687
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Balance sheets

As at 31 March 2012

Group Company
2042 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7 6,113.2 6,031 9 6,111.1 6,0298
Investments 8 - - 4135 2357
6,113.2 6,0319 6,524 6 6,265 5
Current assets
Stocks 6.4 63 6.4 63
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 9a 3645 3321 370.6 3454
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 9b 1.4 54 137.6 432
Short term deposits 12b 0.1 40 0.1 40
Cash at bank and in hand 12b 08 65 0.2 61
3732 354 3 514.9 4050
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 10 (598.6) (475 4) (686 8) (552 3)
Net current liabilities (225.4) (121 1) (171 9) (147 3)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,887 8 59108 6,3527 6,118 2
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 11 {3,971.6) (3,9117) {(4,3482) (3,9128)
Provisions for habilities 13 {537 6) (438 3) (513 8) (438 3)
Net assets excluding pension deficit 1,378 6 1,560 8 1,490 7 1,767 1
Pension deficit 14 {244 6) (198 4) (170 1) (198 4)
Net assets including pension deficit 1,134 0 1,362 4 1,320.6 1,568 7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 1,000 0 1,000 0 1,000 0 1,000 0
Profit and loss account 16 123.4 3624 3206 5687
Shareholder's funds 1,123.4 1,362 4 1,320.6 1,568 7
Minonty interests 20 10.6 - - -
Capital employed 1,134.0 1,362 4 1,320.6 15687

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 29 May 2012

= Dol

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairman Finance Director

Company number 2366686
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Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2012 2011 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating actlivities 19a 844 7 827 1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest receved 36 14
Interest paid (183 1) (162 6)
Interest element of finance lease renta! payments (136) (108)
(193.1) (172 0)
Taxation (68 6) (58 3)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (504.8) (506 4)
Grants and contnbutions received 243 249
Sale of tangible fixed assels 88 196
(471 7) (461 9)
Equity dividends paid {266 0) (153 6)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing (154.7) (18 7)
Management of liquid resources 39 (2 3)
Net cash flow before financing (150 8) (21 0)
Financing
Finance leases repaid (47.8) (47 3)
Loans received 568 0 528 4
Closed out swap - 205
Loans repaid (383 9) (477 4)
Equity interest in subsidiary issued to minonty 10.6 -
Cash payments on employee incentive plans {1.8} (19
145.1 223
Net (decrease)increase in cash 57 13
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2012 2012 2011 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Net increase/(decrease) in cash as above (57) 13
Cash flow from movement in net debt (136 3) (38)
Cash flow from movement in hquid resources (39) 23
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {145 9) (02)
Rolled up interest on net debt (52 5) 517)
Termination of financial instruments - (44 2)
Increase in net debt (198.4) (96 1)
Opening net debt (3,965.5) (3,869 4)
Closing net debt 19b (4,163 9) (3,965 5)
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

a) Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concemn basis (see Directors’ report) under the histoncal
cost convention in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and, except for the
treatment of certain grants and contnbutions, comply with
the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act
2006 (the Act) An explanation of this departure from the
requirements of the Act 1s given in the policy on grants and
contnbutions below

b) Consolidation and exemptions

The consolidated profit and loss account and balance sheet

include the results of the company and its subsidiary

undertakings as listed in note 8 Invest Intra group sales and

profits are eliminated fully on consolidation The company

has taken advantage of the following exemptions

* FRS 1 ‘Cash Flow Statements’ — a cash flow statement
has not been presented

¢ FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — related party
transactions with other group undertakings have not
been disclosed

« SSAP 25 ‘Segmental Reporting’ - segmental
information has not been disclosed

Severn Trent Water Limited 1s a partner in Severn Trent

Limited Partnership (“the partnership™), which i1s registered in

Scotland As the partnership 1s included in the Sevemn Trent

Water Limited consolidated accounts, the company has taken

advantage of the exemption conferred by Regutation 7 of The

Partnership  (Accounts) Regulatons 2008 from the

requirements of Regulaticns 4to 6

c) Turnover

Tumover represents income receivable from regulated water

activites, excluding value added tax Income includes an

estimation of the amount of mains water and waste water

charges unbhilled at the year end The accrual 1s estimated

using a defined methodology based upon a measure of

unbilled water consumed by tanff, which 1s calculated from

histoncal billing information

Tumover 1s not recognised in respect of unoccupied

propertes Properties are classified as unoccupted when

» The company I1s Infformed that a customer has left a
property and it 1s not expected to be reoccupied
immediately,

+ New properties are connected but are not occupied,

» Properties are disconnected following a customers
request, or

* The dentty of the customer 1s unknown

Where bills have been raised in respect of propertties where
the identity of the customer 1s unknown, income 15 only
recogmsed when cash 1s received or the dentity of the
occupier becomes known Where amounts invoiced are
being recovered through charges on income, turnover Is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out above and
provisions are charged to operating costs to reflect the
company's assessment of the nsk of non recoverability

d} Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets compnse

1} Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems being
mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water
storage reservoirs, dams, and sludge pipehnes

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in
capacty or enhancements of the network and on
maintaining the operating capabiity of the network In
accordance with the defined standards of service I1s treated
as an additon and included at cost after deducting grants
and contnbutions (see note 1f} The depreciation charged for
infrastructure assets I1s the estimated, anticipated level of
annual expenditure required to maintain the operating
capability of the network less the estimated, anticipated level
of relevant annual grants and contnbutions, based on the
company's independently certified asset management plan
(see note 1f)

) Other assets

Other assets are ncluded at cost less accumulated
depreciation Additions are included at cost Freehold land 1s
not depreciated Other assets are depreciated on a straight
line basis over therr estmated economic fives, which are
pnncipally as follows

Years
Buildings 30 -60
Operational structures 40 - 80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 2-15

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until
commussioned

e) Leased assets

Where the company or the group obtains assets under
leasing arrangements which transfer substantally all the
nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
(finance leases), the assets are accounted for as if they had
been purchased and the fair value of the minimum lease
payments 18 shown as an obligaton to the lessor Lease
payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and
a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation
to the lessor and the finance charge being wntten off to the
profit and loss account over the penod of the lease in
proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s
charged over the shorter of the estmated useful life and the
lease penod

Where the company or the group obtains assets under
leasing arrangements where substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership remain with the lessor, these are
classified as operating leases Rental costs ansing under
operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease

Where the company or group transfers substantially all the
nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee
{finance lease), the assets are accounted for as If they had
been sold, and the net investment in the lease 1s shown as a
receivable due from the lessee Over the lease term, rentals
are apportioned between a reduction in the net investment in
the lease and finance lease income, such that finance lease
income produces a constant rate of retum on the net cash
investrment in the lease Finance lease income i1s included
within interest receivable and similar income

f) Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbuttons received In respect of non
infrastructure assets are treated as deferred income and are
recogmsed in the profit and loss account over the useful
economic ife of those assets

In accordance with industry practice, grants and
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued
f) Grants and contributions {continued)

contnbutions relating to infrastructure assets have been
deducted from the cost of fixed assets This 15 not n
accordance with the Act, which requires assets to be shown
at their purchase pnce or production cost and hence grants
and contnbutions to be presented as deferred income This
departure from the requirements of the Act s, in the opinion
of the directors, necessary to give a true and farr view as,
while a provision 1s made for depreciation of infrastructure
assets, finme lives have not been determined for these
assets, and therefore no basis exists on which to recognise
grants and contnbutions as deferred income

The effect of this departure 1s that the cost of fixed assets Is
£609 8 million lower than it would otherwmise have been
(2011 £585 5 million)

Those grants and contnbutions relating to the maintenance
of the operating capability of the infrastructure network are
taken into account in determimng the depreciation charged
for infrastructure assets

g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions pnior to 1 Aprit 1998 remains
eliminated against reserves

h) Impairment of goodwill and fixed assets

Impairments of goodwill and fixed assets are calculated as
the difference between the camrying value of the net assets
of income generating units, Including where appropnate
investments and goodwill, and theirr recoverable amounts
Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net
realisable value or estmated value in use at the date the
impairment review 1S undertaken

Net realisable value represents the net amount that can be
generated through sale of assets Value in use represents
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
on a pre-tax basis, using the estimated cost of capital of the
income generating unit

Impairment reviews are camed out if there 15 some
indication that an impairment may have occurred, or, where
otherwise required, to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets
are not camed above their estimated recoverable amounts

Impaimments are recognised 1n the profit and loss account
and, where matenal, are disclosed as exceptional

i) Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less
amounts wntten off

j) Stock

Stock 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and atinbutable
overheads

k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised where
+ There 1s a present obligation as a result of a past event,

s It s probable that there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settle this obligation, and

* A rehable estmate of this amount can be made

Self-insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified
and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified,

based on advice from the group's independent insurance
advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-lax
discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the hability
where the effect 1Is matenal

1) Pension costs

The group and company operale both defined benefit and
defined contnbution schemes

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to
operating profit are the current and past service costs and
gains and losses on settlements and curtailments They are
included as part of staff costs Past service costs are
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account if the
benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested
immediately the costs are recognised over the penod untl
vesting occurs The inferest cosis and the expected retum
on assets 1s shown as a net amount of other finance costs or
credits adjacent to interest Actuanal gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the
scheme held separately from those of the group, in separate
trustee administered funds Pension scheme assets are
measured at bid pnice and habiities are measured on an
actuanal basis using the projected unt method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum
on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and
term to the scheme labiibhes The actuanal valuatons are
obtained at least tnennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date The resulting defined benefit asset or hlability, net
of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately after
other net assets on the face of the balance sheet

Costs of defined contnbution pension schemes are charged
to the profit and loss account when they fall due

m) Research and development

Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and
development projects 1s capitalised and wntten off over the
expected useful Ife of those assets

Other research and development expenditure 1s charged to
the profit and loss account in the year in which it 1s iIncurred

n} Current and deferred taxation

Current taxation 1s provided at amounts expected to be pad
(or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation i1s provided in respect of timing differences
between the treatment of certain tems for taxaton and
accounting purposes only to the extent that the group has an
obligaton to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay less
tax in the future Matenal defemred taxation balances ansing
are discounted by applying an appropnate nsk free discount
rate For the purposes of discounting, the penod over which
accelerated capial allowances in respect of infrastructure
assets reverse 1s determined by the estimated annual cost of
marmtainng the operating capability of the network, based on
an allocation of the infrastructure renewals charge to existing
and future infrastructure assets

o) Denvatives and other financial instruments

Debt instruments

The costs of debt instruments are charged to the profit and
loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on
the carrying amount
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued

o) Denvatives and other financial Instruments

(continued)

Such costs include the cost of 1ssue and any discount to
face value ansing on Issue, Or any premium ansing on
matunty

Dernvative financial instruments

Financial instruments, in particular, interest rate swaps and
to a lesser extent currency swaps, are used to manage the
financial nsks ansing from the business actwvites of the
group and the financing of those activihes

Energy swaps are used to manage the nsks of future
fluctuations n electricity prices There 15 no trading activity
in financial instruments Financial tnstruments are accounted
for as follows

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the group’s exposure
to movements in interest rates The mterest payable or
receivable on such swaps s accrued in the same way as
interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Interest rate
swaps are not revalued to far value

Currency swaps are used 1o hedge the group's exposure to
movements in foreign exchange rates The interest payable
or recervable on such swaps 1s accrued In the same way as
interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Currency swaps
are not revalued to farr value but are recogrised in the
balance sheet at the difference between the swap rate

and the spot rate at the balance sheet date and offset
against the associated hedged borrowings

Energy swaps are not revalued to fair value

The aggregate farr values at the balance sheet date of the
hedging instruments described above are disclosed in note
12 Finance to the financial statements

p) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled, share based
compensation plans for employees utilising the shares of the
ultmate parent company The far value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant 1s recognised as
an expense over the vesting pernod of the grant

The farr value of employee services s determined by
reference to the farr value of the awards granted calculated
using an appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions The number of awards
that are expected to vest takes into account non-market
vesting conditions including, where appropnate, continuing
employment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a result of faling to meet a non-
market condition

2 Analysis of total operating costs and exceptional operating items

Group

2012 2011

Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceplional  Exceptional

costs costs Total costs costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Wages and salanes 159.2 26 1618 156 4 39 160 3
Social secunty costs 14.0 02 14 2 130 04 134
Pension costs (note 14) 253 (21 8) 35 24 4 06 250
Share based paymenis 38 - 38 47 - 47
Total employee costs 2023 (19 0) 1833 198 5 49 2034
Power 577 - 57.7 505 - 505
Raw matenals and consumables 46 8 04 47 2 46 2 05 467
Rates 684 - 684 615 - 615
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 312 - 312 318 - 318
Service charges 333 - 333 326 - 326
Depreciation on owned assets non infrastructure 2520 - 2520 2434 - 2434
Depreciation on owned assets infrastructure 1363 - 1363 1067 - 106 7
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 3883 - 388.3 3501 - 3501
Hired and contracied services 1556 4.3 159.9 1195 34 122 9
Other operating lease rentals 04 - 04 15 02 17
Hire of plant and machinery 48 - 48 66 - 66
Research and development expenditure 40 - 40 41 - 41
{Profit)loss on disposal of fixed assets (42) - {4 2) 11 - 11
Other operating costs 378 40 418 388 40 428
1,026 4 (10 3) 1,016 1 942 8 130 5568
Release from deferred income (32) - {3.2) (2 9) - (2 9)
Own work capitalised (76 B) - (76.8) (59 9) - (59 9)
Total operating costs 946 4 (10 3) 9361 8800 130 89340
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Notes to the financial statements

2 Analysis of total operating costs and exceptional operating items continued
Company
2012 2011
Before Before
excaptional Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional
costs costs Total costs costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Wages and salanes 159 2 2.6 1618 156 4 39 160 3
Social secunty costs 140 02 142 130 04 134
Pension costs (note 14) 25.3 (21.8) 35 244 06 250
Share based payments 38 - 38 47 - a7
Total employee costs 202 3 (19 0) 1833 198 5 49 2034
Power 577 - 57.7 505 - 505
Raw matenals and consumables 46.8 04 47 2 46 2 05 467
Rates 68.4 - 68.4 615 - 615
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 312 - 312 318 - 318
Service charges 333 - 33.3 326 - 3286
Depreciation on owned assets non infrastructure 2520 - 2520 243 4 - 243 4
Depreciation on owned assets Iinfrastructure 136 3 . 136.3 106 7 - 1067
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 388.3 - 3883 350 1 - 3501
Hired and contracted services 155 6 43 159 9 1195 34 1229
Other operating leases rentals 128 - 128 125 62 127
Hire of plant and machinery 48 - 48 66 - 66
Research and development expenditure 40 - 4.0 41 - 41
(Profit)loss on disposal of fixed assets (4 2) - (42) 11 - 11
Other operating costs 378 40 418 388 40 42 8
1,038 8 (103) 1,0285 953 8 130 966 8
Release from deferred income (32} - {32) (29) - {(29)
Own work capitalised {76 B) - (76 8) {59 9) - {59 9)
Total operating costs 958.8 (10 3) 948 5 8910 130 904 0
Auditors’ remuneration
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m Em
Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual
accounts 03 04 03 04
Fees payable to the company's auditors for non-audit services - - - -
03 04 03 04
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Notes to the financial statements

2 Analysis of total operating costs and exceptional operating items continued
Exceptional items Group and comtpany
2012 2011
£Em £m
Exceptional restructunng costs (11.5) (13 0)
Excephional pensions curtallment gain 218 -
10.3 (130}
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 175

An £11 5 million exceptional charge {2011 £13 0 million) arose from the programme to restructure and realign the business
A £21 8 millien (2011 nil} exceptional pension curtailment gain was also realised {note 14)

in 2011, exceptional profit of £17 5 millon was realised from property disposals and was classified as non-operating n
accordance with FRS 3 ‘Reporting financial performance’ In 2012, no equivalent exceptional profit has arisen

3 Information regarding directors and employees
Directors

a) Directors’ interests

All of the directors as al the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, the ultimate parent undertaking, and their
interests In the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of that company for the year
ended 31 March 2012 Share options were granted and exercised in accordance with the Severn Trent Share Option
Scheme and the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme as appropnate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 97'7/1gp each by wirtue of having
recerved contingent awards of shares under the Sevem Trent Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) on 7 July 2009, 21 June 2010
and 22 June 2011, deferred shares under the Severn Trent Annual Bonus Scheme on 7 July 2009, 21 May 2010 and 20 May
2011, and contingent shares under the Share Matching Plan on 21 May 2010 and 20 May 2011

The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis The Sevem Trent Employee Share ownership Trust 1s operated in
conjunction with the LTIP and Annual Bonus Scheme. Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years
and specific performance cntena have been satisfied The performance cntena for the awards are based on Severn Trent
Pic's Total Shareholder Retumn (TSR)

Dunng the year, the executive directors received half of their bonus for the year ended 31 March 2011 n deferred shares
under the Annual Bonus Scheme and contingent matching shares (being 50% of their deferred share award) under the Share
Matching Plan Performance targets apply to the Share Matching Plan award in the same manner as the LTIP

The individual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become
entitted, are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012

b) Emoluments

2012 2011
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions) 3,688.9 33448
Pension contnbutions (defined contnbution arrangements) 121.2 2397

3,810 1 3,584 5

1} The emoluments of the non-executive directors are pand by Severn Trent Pic

n) Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors (2011 three directors) under a defined benefit scheme and two
directors (2011 two directors) under a defined contnbution scheme

) Five directors (2011 five directors} exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested dunng the year

¢) Highest paid director

2012 2011
£000 £000
Aggregale emoluments (excluding pensicn contnbutions) 1,034 9 205 1

The accrued pension at 31 March 2012 for the highest paid director was £29,471 (2011 £25,002) The pension entitlement I1s
that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year The highest paid director did not
exercise any share options dunng the year The highest paid director's 2008 LTIP award did not vest dunng the perfformance
year
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3 Information regarding directors and employees continued
Employees
Group and company
2012 2011
Number Numnber
Average number of employees dunng the year 5,162 5,237
4 Net interest payable and exceptional interest costs
Group
2012 2011
Before
exceptional Exceptional
costs costs Total Total
£m £m £m £m
Interest receivable and stmilar income 24 - 24 223
Finance income on defined benefit pension schemes 891 - 891 B2 9
Interest receivable 915 - 91.5 1052
Interest payable and similar charges on
Bank loans and overdrafts (21 8) - {21.8) (18 4)
Other loans (197 8) (16 5) {214 3) (224 8)
Finance leases {9.4) - (94) (24 0)
Interest cost on defined benefit pension schemes (87 0) - (87 0) (87 6)
Interest payable (316 0) (16 5} (332.5) (354 8)
(224 5) (16.5) (241 0) {249 6)
Company
2012 20114
Before
exceptional Exceptional
costs costs Total Total
£m £m £m £m
Interest receivable and similar ncome 36 - 36 236
Finance income con defined benefit pension schemes 89.1 - 89.1 829
Interest receivable 927 - 927 106 5
Interest payable and similar charges on
Bank loans and overdrafts (21 8) - (218) (18 4)
Other loans (80) - (80) (15 3)
Finance leases (11.5) - (11.5) (24 0)
Amounts due to subsidiary undertaking (190 1) (16 5) {206 &) (209 8)
Interest cost on defined benefit pension schemes (87 0) - (87 0) (87 6)
Interest payable (318.4) {16.5) (334.9) (355 1}
(225.7) {16 5) (242 2) (248 6)

On 24 January 2012 the group 1ssued a £250 0 millon bond with a coupon of 4 875% and a matunty of 30 years On 27
January 2012, the group purchased £150 6 milion of a £200 0 milion bond matunng n 2014 as part of a tender offer
launched simuitaneously with the bond 1ssue The costs of the tender offer give nse to an exceptional interest charge of

£16 5 million, representing the difference between the purchase pnce and the carrying value of the bond (see note 12)
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5 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of charge in the year
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m
Current tax
UK Corporation tax at 26% (2011 28%)
- Current year 51.3 522 50.0 512
- Adiustment n respect of pnor years (8.4) (13.1) (8.4) (13 1)
Group reltef payable at 26% (2011 28%)
- Current year 22,6 178 22,9 182
- Adjustment in respect of prior years 30 05 3.0 05
Total current tax 68.5 574 675 568
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences
- Current year {10 8) 137 (10 8) 137
- Adjustment in respect of pnor years 41 107 41 107
- Effect of change n tax rate (55.7) (53 8) {(557) {53 8)
- Increase in discount 156 3 (49 3) 156 3 {49 3)
Total deferred tax credit 239 (78 7) 939 {78 7)
Deferred tax included in the statement of recognised gans and losses 146 (15 8) 146 {15 B)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) included in profit and loss account 108.5 (94 5) 108 5 {94 5)
Total tax charge/(credit) 177.0 37 1) 176 0 (37 7)

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The current tax assessed for the year i1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom (26%) (2011

28%) The differences are explained below

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £Em £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 284.5 268 3 274.4 2583
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of
26% (2011 28%) 740 751 713 723
Effects of
Items not taxable cor not deductable for tax purposes (57) (35) {4 0) {13)
Captal allowances for penod less than/(in excess of} depreciation 40 14 4.0 14
Movement in short term timing differences 1.6 (30} 1.6 (30)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of pnor penods (5.4) (12 6) {(5.4) {12 6)
68 5 574 67 5 568

Of the current year charge, £2 8 milbon credit {2011 £3 2 million credit) relates to current tax on exceptional items and
£5 2milbon charge (2011 £6 5 millkon credit) relates to deferred tax on exceptional items
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5 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities continued
¢) Tax charged directly to equity

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account the following amounts have been (credited)/charged directly
to equity

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 201

£m £m £m £

Current tax relief on pension contnbutions (79) - (79 -
Deferred tax on actuanal gains and losses {25 4) {15 8) (25 4) (15 8)
Deferred tax relief on pension contnbutions 108 - 10.8 -
Tax credited directly to equity (22.5) {15 8) (22.5) (15 8)

d) Factors affecting future tax rates

The group’s current tax charge of £73 9 million (2011 £70 0 milion) before adjustments to the tax charge in respect of pnor
penods represenis 26 0% (2011 26 1%) of the group's profit before tax

The company's current tax charge of £72 9 million (2011 £69 4 million) before adjustments to the tax charge in respect of
pnor penods represents 26 6% (2011 26 9%) of the company's profit before tax

The 'effect of change in tax rate' deferred tax credit 1s an amount which reflects the decrease in the main corporation tax rate
1o 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 (2011 decrease in the main corporation tax rate from 28% to 26%), being the rate at which
deferred tax 15 expected to reverse The group and company's tax charge will continue to be affected in future years by the
level of capital expenditure, which 1s dnven by the requirements of AMPS, and by the extent and bming of tax deductions that
will be avallable for such expenditure The group's and company’s deferred tax charge in future 1s difficult to predict as it is
impacted by changes to discount rates

6 Dividends
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Dividends paid 266.0 153 6 2660 1536

The company’'s dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company's regulatory obligations and at
a level which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, future cash
flow requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes The ordinary dividend declared
and paid by the company in year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to £266 0 milion, being 26 6p per share (2011 15 4p per
share)
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7 Tangible fixed assets
Group
Landand  Infrastructure Fixed plant and Vehicles and
bulidings assets equipment mobile plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 25418 42967 35422 44 4 10,425 1
Additions 106 4 2025 186 3 33 498 5
Grants and contnbutions - (24 3) - - (24 3)
Assets sold or wntten off (33) (0 1) (24 3) 27 (30 4)
At 31 March 2012 2,644 9 4,474 8 3,704.2 45.0 10,868.9
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2011 (805 3) (1,690 3) (1,873 2) (24 4) (4,393 2)
Charge for the year (54 5) (136 3) {192 3) (52) (388 3)
Assets sold or wnitten off 31 - 203 24 258
At 31 March 2012 {856 7) (1,826 6) {2,045 2) (27 2) (4,755 7)
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 1,788 2 2,648.2 1,659 0 17.8 6,113 2
At 31 March 2011 1,736 5 2,606 4 16680 200 6,0319
Company
Land and Infrastructure Fixed plant and Vehicles and
buildings assets equipment mobile plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 25418 4,294 4 3,5422 44 4 10,422 8
Additons 106 4 2025 186 3 33 498 5
Grants and contnbutions - (24 3) - - (24 3)
Assets sold or wntten off (33) (01) (24 3) 27 (30 4)
At 31 March 2012 2,644 9 4,472.5 3,704 2 450 10,866 6
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2011 (805 3) (1,690 1) (1,873 2) {24 4) (4,393 0)
Charge for the year (54 5) (136 3) (192 3) (52) (388 3)
Assets sold or wnitten off 31 - 203 24 258
At 31 March 2012 (856.7) {1,826.4) (2,045 2) {27.2) (4,755.5)
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 1,788.2 2,646.1 1,659.0 178 6,111.1
At 31 March 2011 1,736 56 2,604 3 1,669 0 200 6,029 8
1) Included i tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Cost 402 3 4029 615.6 4005
Accumulated depreciation (198 7} (179 4) {226 2) (179 1)
Net book value 2036 2235 389.4 2214

Group depreciation dunng the year was £19 3 million and company depreciation was £47 1 million

) Grants and contnbutions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets in
order to show a true and fair view as set out in note 1f)
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7 Tangible fixed assets continued
m) The net book value of land and builldings i1s analysed as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Freehold 1,787 9 1,736 2 1,787 9 1,736 2
Short leasehold 03 03 0.3 03
1,788 2 1,736 5 1,788 2 1,736 5
iv) Tangible fixed assets not subject to depreciation are
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Land 320 306 32.0 306

Assets in the course of construction

367 3 433 8

367.3 433 8

3993 464 4

3993 464 4

8 Investments
The group had no invesiments The company's investmentis are set out below
Company
Shares in Loans to
subsidiary subsidiary Other
undertakings undertakings  investments Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost and net book value
At 1 Apnl 2011 1701 655 01 2357
Additions in the year 1778 - - 1778
At 31 March 2012 3479 65.5 01 413.5

Country of registraton and Percentage and class of

cperation share capital held Nature of business
Subsidiary undertakings (all directly held)

100% Ordinary &
East Worcester Water Limited England and Wales 100% non-voting Finance company
Severn Trent Reservorrs Limited England and Wales 100% Ordinary Finance company
Sevemn Trent Uttities Finance Plc England and Wales 100% Ordinary Finance company
Severn Trent LCP Limited * England and Wales 100% Ordinary Leasing Company
Severn Trent Leasing Limited’ England and Wales 100% Ordinary Leasing Company
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited’ Scotland 100% Ordinary Finance company
Biogas Generation Limited England and Wales 100% Ordinary Dormant
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited England and Wales 100% Ordinary Dormant
Severn Trent Funding Limited England and Wales 100% Ordinary Dormant

! additions durng the year

The company also has an indirect investment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a limted partnership registered in
Scotland, as a result of Severn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

In the opinion of the directors the fair values of the group’s and company’s investments are not less than the amount at which

they are stated in the balance sheet
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9 Debtors
a) Amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
£m £m £m £m
Trade debtors 142.3 126 9 142 3 126 9
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 8.9 58 89 58
QOther debtors 28.8 362 28.8 386
Amounts receiwvable under finance leases - - 57 -
Prepayments and accrued income 184.5 163 2 184 9 1741
364.5 3321 3706 3454
b) Amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - - 388 ars
Amounts receivable under finance leases - - a7 4 -
Prepayments and accrued income 14 54 14 54
1.4 54 137 6 432
Total debtors 3659 3375 508.2 3886
¢) Amounts receivable under finance leases
Net investment n finance leases compnses
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Total amounts receivable - - 289 5 -
Less interest allocated to future penods - - {186.4) -
- - 103.1 -

Rentals receivable by the company dunng the year under finance leases amounted to £113 5 million (2011 £nl}

10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £Em Em £m
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 186 0 96 5 186 0 96 5
Other loans 43.4 49 - -
Obligations under finance leases - 135 139 135
Borrowings {note 12) 2294 114 9 1999 1100
Trade creditors 14.8 122 148 122
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 19.0 182 1650 116 7
Other creditors 5.8 82 18.7 325
Taxation and social secunty 43 41 43 41
Caorporation tax payable 37.7 46 6 368 458
Accruals and deferred ncome 287.6 2712 247 3 2310
598.6 4754 686 8 5523
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1 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m Em £m
Bank loans 610.3 6027 610.3 6027
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - - 3,278 9 3,006 3
Other loans 3,106.2 3,005 2 - -
Obligations under finance leases 218.9 2532 422.7 2532
Borrowings (note 12) 3,935.4 38611 4,311.9 3,862 2
Other creditors 1.6 130 1.7 130
Deferred income 346 376 34.6 3786
39716 39117 4,348 2 39128

12 Financial instruments

The group’s policies in respect of interest rate nsk management and the related use of financial instruments are set out in

accounting policy note 1 0)

a) Borrowings analysed by maturity date

Group
2012 2011
Loan with other Loan wath other

repayment Finance repayment Finance
tarms leases Total terms leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial habiities due within one year {note 10) (229 4) - (229.4) (101 4) {13 5) (1149)
Between one and two years (160 3) (77) (178 0) (43 4) (16 4) (59 8)
Between two and five years (882 1) (85 5) (967 6) {1,034 3) (841) (1,1184)
Afier more than five years (2,674 1) (1157) (2,7898) (2,5302) (1527) (2,6829)
2’:;'3; f}r:a)mmal habilties due after one year (3,716 5) (2189) (3.9354) (3.607 9) (2532) (3.8611)
(3,945 9) (2189) (4,164 8) (3,709 3) (2667} (3,976 0)

£610 3 million (2011 £602 7 milhon) of funding Instruments contain certain financial covenants, breach of which can tngger

early repayment

Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years compnse

Rate of interest 2012 2011

% £m £m

European Investment Bank loan - 2017-20 (2011 2016-20) 1145 3000 4500
European medium term loan notes - 2018-2067 (2011 2016-67) 1563 1,661 0 1,3680
Sterling bonds 2024-29 (2011 2024-29) 6163 7131 7122
Total capital 2,6741 2,5302

On 24 January 2012 the group 1ssued a £250 0 million bond with a coupon of 4 875% and a matunty of 30 years On 27
January 2012, the group purchased £150 6 millon of a £200 0 mullion bond matuning in 2014 as part of a tender offer
launched simultaneously with the bond 1ssue The costs of the tender offer give nse to an exceptional interest charge of
£16 5 million, representing the difference between the purchase pnce and the carrying value of the bond
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12 Financial instruments continued

a) Borrowings analysed by maturity date continued

Future minimum payments under finance leases are as follows

Group
2042 2011
£m £m
Within one year 4.4 190
In more than one year, but not more than five years 129.0 1323
After five years 158.7 201 3
2921 3526
Less finance charges included above {73 2) (85 9)
Present value of lease obligations 218.9 2667
b) Investments i1n interest earning assets
Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 0.8 65
Short tenm deposits 0.1 40
0.9 1056

Short term Sterling deposits include £nil (2011 £1 4 millien) held on short term deposit with a matunty of less than one year
as secunty for self insurance obligations Sterling deposits receive interest based on LIBID

c) Borrowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of various interest rate swaps entered intc by the group

Group
Fixed interest Floating  Index linked
rate interest rate rate Total
£m £m £m £m
Maturity profile
Less than one year - 2294 - 2294
Between one and two years 177 - 160 3 1780
Between two and five years 670 3 297 4 - 967 7
Between five and twenty years 1,3757 1700 1714 1,717 1
In more than twenty years 2466 - 826 0 1,0726
Total borrowings 23103 696 8 1,157 7 4,164.8
Impact of interest rate swaps entered into by the group and company 2386 (238 6) - -
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps 2,548.9 458 2 1,157.7 4,164 8
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (09) - {0 9)
Net debt as at 31 March 2012 2,548 9 457.3 1,157.7 4,163 9

Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps as at 31 March 2011 24968 3749 1,104 3 39760
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (10 5) - (10 5)

Net debt as at 31 March 2011 2496 8 364 4 1,104 3 3,9655

Fixed interest debt incurs interest at a weighted average rate of 5 8% (2011 5 9%) Interest on these borrowings is fixed for a
weighted average penod of 13 6 years (2011 9 8 years)

Included In the fixed interest debt above, the group has entered into one (2011 one) accreting interest rate swap This has a
notional value of £23 6 million (2011 £22 3 million) and accretes value up to 2030 (2011 2030) The maximum notional
value of this swap 1s £35 0 milion {2011 £35 0 millon} The group pays fixed interest at 552% (2011 5 52%)

The group has ten (2011 ten) forward dated swaps (floating to fixed) wath a total notional value of £450 0 mullion (2011
£450 0 milion) that bear interest between 4 92% and 5 16% (2011 4 92% and 5 16%) These interest rate swaps commence
in 2013 and 2014 and end in 2023 and 2024

Floating rate borrowings bear interest based on LIBOR The pnncipal outstanding under index hnked debt 1s adjusted by the
change in the Retail Pnces Index at regular intervals Interest s charged at fixed rates on the adjusted amount
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12 Financial instruments continued
d) Fair value of financial instruments

The group uses financial denvatives pnmarily for the purposes of managing the interest rate and currency nsks associated
with financing business activittes. The group’s policy for the management of interest rate nsk is to have a balanced portfoho
of debt with a mix of term and interest rate structures that diversifies its nsk and 1s appropnate to the long Iife of its asset
base The details are penodically reviewed to respond to changing market condibions and to have regard to regulatory
pronocuncements At 31 March 2012 interest rates on 61 2% of the group’s borrowings were fixed for a weighted average
penod of up o 13 6 years (2011 62 8%, fixed up to 9 8 years)

The group's business does not involve significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions Cross currency swaps are

employed to exchange foreign currency borrowings for sterling

2012 2041

Book value Falir value Book value Falr value

Financial instrument by category asset/{liability) £m £Em £m £m

Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance business

activities

Short term deposits 01 01 40 40

Cash at bank and n hand 08 08 65 65

Short term debtors and creditors 117.4 117.4 1053 1053

Borrowings falling due within one year {229 4) {43 6) {114 9) (112 0}

Borrowangs falling due after more than one year {4,0332) (4,6696) (4,0010) (4,2569)

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the currency and

interest rate profile

Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - {213.3) - {67 2)

Currency instruments - cross currency swaps 978 1085 1399 132 2

Energy swaps - 10 - 146

Total net financial liabilites (4,046 5) {4,6987) (3,8602) (4,1735)

Other long term assets

Cther fixed asset nvestments 01 01 01 01

Where available market rates have been used to determine fair values When market pnces are not avalable, farr values

have been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates

e) Borrowing facilities

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facilites of £600 0 milion expinng n greater than 5
years (2011 £41 7 milion expinng in less than one year, £458 3 million expinng between two and five years and £nl expinng
In greater than 5 years) In October 2011 a new five year £500 0 million Revolving Credit Facility was agreed, £200 0 million
of which 15 held jointly with Severn Trent Plc In March 2012 a new ten year £100 0 milion bilateral bank faciity was also
agreed

f) Unrecognised gains and losses

Gains or losses on denvative instruments are not recognised unhl the expense that 1s being hedged 1s itself recogmised
Unrecognised gains or losses on hedges at the balance sheet date are summansed in the table below These gans or losses
recognise the expected future benefit or cost of interest rate and foreign currency hedges to the group and company at 31

March 2012 given prevailing economic conditions

Group

Total net

Gaing Losses gains/(losses)

£m £m £m

Unrecognised gans and losses on hedges 1 Apnl 2011 696 (129 2) (59 6)

Ansing In previous years that were recognised in the year (2 5) - (2 5)

Anstng before 1 Apnl 2011 that were not recogrised in the financial year 67 1 (120 2) (62 1)

Unrecogrised gams and losses ansing dunng the financial year {24 6) (114 9) (139 5)

Unrecognised gains and losses at 31 March 2012 425 (2441) (201 6)
Expected to be recognised

In one year or less 26 - 26

In later years 399 (244 1) (204 2)
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13 Provisions for liabilities

Provisions for habilities comprise:

Group

Leasehold
Restructunng Self insurance properies  Deferred tax Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At1 Apnl 2011 30 02 83 426 8 438 3
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account 15 (02) 04 (54 9} (532)
Utilisation of provision 27) - {15) - (4 2)
Unwind of discount - - 04 156 3 156 7
At 31 March 2012 1.8 - 76 528.2 5376
Company

Dilapidation &

onerous
Restructuning Self iInsurance leasehold  Deferred tax Total
£m £m £fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 30 02 83 426 8 438 3
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account 15 (02) 04 (78 7) {77 0)
Utilisation of provision (27 - (15) - (42)
Unwind of discount - - 04 156 3 156 7
At 31 March 2012 18 - 76 504 4 5138

The restructunng provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of commitied programmes Substantially all of the
assoclated outflows are expected tc occur within one year (2011 one year) of the balance sheet date

Provision 15 made for dilapidation costs and onerous leasehold property costs The associated outflows are expected to anse
over a penod of up to eight years (2011 seven years) from the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

The full deferred tax hability, calculated at a tax rate of 24% (2011 26%) 1s

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m Em £m
Capital allowances 740 3 8026 740 3 8026
Other tming differences (08) (81) (1.1) 81)
Deferred tax asset relating to pension hability {77 2) (69 7) (77.2) {69 7)
Share schemes (13) (14) (1.3) (14)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 6610 723 4 660 7 7234
Discount (210.0) (366 3) (210.0) (366 3)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 4510 3571 4507 357 1
Adjustment for deferred tax asset relating to pension hability (note 14) T72 697 537 697
Deferred tax as disclosed in provisions 528 2 426 8 504 4 426 8
Prowvision at start of year 426 8 5245 426 8 5245
Deferred tax chargef(credit) included in profit and loss account 108 § (94 5) 108 5 {94 5)
gz;ir;ed tax (credit)/charge included in statement of recognised gains and (14 6) 158 (14.6) 158
Adjustment for deferred tax relating to pension hability (note 14)
- Included in profit and loss account {credit)/charge (150) (32) {15.0} (32)
- Included in statement of recognised gains and losses (credit)/charge 225 (15 8) {1.3) {15 8)
Provision at end of year 528 2 4268 504 4 426 8
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14 Pensions

The group and company participate in the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (STPS) and the Sevemn Trent Mirror Image
Scheme (STMIS) (together ‘the Schemes"), both of which are defined benefit schemes and are funded to cover future salary
and pension increases The assets of the schemes are held in a separate fund admmustered by trustees

The date of their last formal actuanal valuations are as follows

Date of last formal actuanal valuation

Severn Trent Pension Scheme* 31 March 2010
Sevemn Trent Muror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2009

*The STPS 15 by far the largest of the group's UK defined benefit schemes

Contrnbution rates are set In consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer |t is anticipated
that normal contnibutions to the scheme n the year ended 31 March 2012 will be 1 the order of £10 0 millon and lump sum
deficit contnbutions of £8 0 million are planned

The final salary sections of all of the pension schemes listed below are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme
participants I1s expected to nse and hence service cosis are also expected to nse in the future

On 11 May 2011, Severn Trent announced that it was consulting with its 6,000 plus UK employees on proposed changes to
its pension arrangements, which would see all existing pensions replaced by one new defined contrnibution scheme Following
the penod of consultation and after discussion with the Schemes' Trustees, final proposals have been accepted by the
employees’ representatives and the Trustees A new defined contribution scheme has been established and new employees
have been auto enrolled into this scheme with effect from 1 Aprl 2042 The defined benefit schemes will close to future
accrual on 31 March 2015 and members of the defined benefit scheme will become members of the new defined contnbution
scheme The existing defined contnbution scheme will also be replaced by the new pension arrangements with effect from 1
Apnl 2015 and it 1s proposed to automatically enrol those employees who are not currently members of a Sevem Trent
scheme from 2013

In March 2012, the group agreed with the trustees of the STPS to transfer to the STPS the entittement to receive cash flows
from an intra-group asset backed funding arrangement of approximately £8 2 milhon per annum for a penod of up to 20
years, subject 1o funding levels This entitlement was valued at £98 0 mullion, representing the net present value of those
cash flows The cash flows anse from entiies within the Severn Trent Water Limied Group and therefore this contnbution
does not reduce the defined benefit pension deficit disclosed in the group balance sheet

The actuanal habilties and market values of the assets at 31 March 2012 of the group’s defined benefit schemes, detalls of
which are provided above, have been assessed by the group’s actuanes in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17

The major assumptions used In the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for
the valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2012 2011
Valuation method Projected unit Projected unit
Price inflation 3.10% 350%
Salary increase 360% 4 00%
Pension increases in payment* 310% 3 50%
Pension increases in deferment* 3.10% 350%
Discount rate 4 80% 5 60%
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retinng now

- men (years) 225 224

- women (years) 26.1 260
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retinng in 20 years

- men (years) 230 230

- women {years) 269 268

* In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension
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14 Pensions continued

Amounts recognised n the profit and loss account in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows
Group and company

2012 2011
£m £m

Amounts charged to operating costs

Cument service cost (21 2) (21 1)

Curtalment gain 218 -
06 {21 1)

Amounts charged to net finance costs

Interest cost (87.0) {87 6)

Expected return on scheme assets 891 829
21 47

Total amount charged in profit and loss account 27 (25 8)

Actuanal gamns and losses have been reported in the statement of recognised gains and losses The cumulative amount of
actuanal gamns and losses recogmsed in the statement of recognised gains and losses since the adoption of FRS 17
‘Retirement benefits’ 1s a net loss of £234 5 million {2011 net loss of £133 8 milion) The cumulative imitation on actuanal
gains recognised under FRS 17 where 1t 1s deemed that a surplus cannot be recovered in full either through reduced
cantnbutions or scheme refunds 1s a total of £14 1 mithon gains not recognised (2011 £9 1 million gains not recognised)

An element of the service cost is capitalised in ine with the group’s accounting polictes

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under defined benefit schemes 1s as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obhgations - funded schemes (1,693 3) (1,5700) (1,693.3) (1,5700)
Total fair value of assets 1,3856 1,311 0 1,483 6 1,3110
(307 7) (259 0) (209.7) (259 0)
Asset nol recognised (14 1) 91) (14.1) (¢1)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (before deferred tax) (321 8) (268 1) (223 8) (268 1)
Deferred tax 77.2 697 53.7 697
Liahility recognised in the balance sheet (244 6) (198 4) (170 1) (198 4)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obhgation were as follows

Group and company
2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 1,570 0 1,557 1
Current service cost 212 211
Curtailment gain {21.8) -
Interest cost 870 876
Contnbutions from scheme members 51 56
Actuanal loss/(gain) 85.1 {38 5)
Benefits paid {63.3) (62 9)
At 31 March 1,693.3 1,570 0
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14 Pensions continued
Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 13110 1,240 4 1,311 0 1,240 4
Expected retum on scheme assets 8g 1 829 89.1 829
Contnbutions 224 229 22.4 229
Special contnbutions 289 14 4 126 9 14 4
Contnbutions from scheme members 51 586 5.1 56
Contnibutions due from other group companies {(19) - {19) -
Actuanal (loss)/gain (56) 77 (56) 77
Benefits paid (63 4) {62 9) {63 4) (62 9)
At 31 March 1,3856 1,311 0 1,483 6 1,311 0
The analysis of the assets 1n the schemes and the expected rates of return were
Group
2012 2011
Expected Falr value of Expected Falr value of
return assets retum asseis
£m £m
Equites 6 80 % 7113 785% 7117
Gilts 330% 2085 435 % 3556
Corporate bonds 490 % 301 2 560% 472 2
Hedge fund 630% 47 0 - % -
Property 580% 94 4 685 % 848
Cash 390% 232 435 % 68
Total fair value of assets 1,3856 11,3110
Company
2012 2011
Expectad Fair value of Expected Falr value of
return assels retum assets
£m £m
Equities 6 80 % 7113 785% 7117
Gilts 3.30% 208.5 435% 355
Corporate bonds 490 % 301.2 560 % 4722
Hedge fund 630 % 470 -% -
Property 580 % 244 685 % 848
Cash 390% 23.2 435 % 68
Asset backed funding investment 390% 98 0 - % -
Total fair value of assets 1,483 6 1,311 0

The expected rate of return on scheme assets 15 based on market expectations at the beginning of the penod for returns over
the life of the benefit obligations For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of retumn are based on market yields at the
previous balance sheet date

For equities, an equity nsk preniuum has been added to the gilt rate
The actual return on scheme assets was a gan of £83 § milion (2011 £90 6 milion gain)
The history of the actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and habilities for the group 1s

Group

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit abhgations (1,693 3) (1,5700) (1,557 1) (1,1624) (1,2955)
Fair value of scheme assets 1,3856 1,3110 1,2404 9566 1,1840
Asset not recognised (14.1) (91) - (37 -
Scheme defiait (3218) (2681) (3167) (2095) (1115)
Expenence adjustments on scheme labilites {0 2} {97 6) 179 (85) 717
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets {56) 77 2399 (2812) (1098)
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14 Pensions continued
The history of the actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and habilities for the company i1s

Company
2012 2011 2010 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations {1,6933) (1,5700) (1,557 1) (1,1624) (1,2955)
Fair value of scheme assets 14836 13110 1,2404 9566 1,1840
Asset not recognised {14 1) {8 1) - {(37) -
Scheme deficit (2238) (2681) (3167) (2095) (1115)
Expenence adjustments on scheme liabilities (0.2) (97 6) 179 {8 5) 717
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets {(56) 77 2399 {291 2) (109 8)

Defined contnbution schemes

The group also operates defined contnbution arangements for certain of its UK employees In September 2001, the Sevemn
Trent Group Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contnbution scheme) was established to ensure compliance with
stakeholder legislation and to provide the group with an altemative pension arrangement This was closed to new entrants on
1 Apnl 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme Refer page 56 for detals of changes to
pension arrangement from 1 Apnl 2012

The total cost charged to operating costs of £4 2 millton (2011 £3 9 million) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2012 100% (2011 100%} contnbutions
due in respect of the current reporting penod have been paid over to the schemes

15 Share capital

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Issued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2011 1,000,000,000} 1,000 0 1,0000 1,000 0 1,000 0
16 Profit and loss account
Group Company
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 3624 568 7
Profit for the financial year 1075 98 4
Share based payments 27 27
Actuanal loss (105 7) (105 7)
Tax on actuanal loss 283 283
Adjustment in respect of rate change on deferred tax {(29) (29)
Tax on pension contnbutions {29) (29)
Dividends paid (266 0) (266 0)
At 31 March 2012 123.4 3206

At 31 March 2012 cumulative goodwill wniten off against group reserves amounted {0 £29 2 milion (2011 £29 2 million)

17 Commitments and contingent liabilities

a) Investment expenditure commitments
Group and company

2012 2011
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 1598 917

In addition to these commitments, the group and company have longer term expenditure plans which include investments to
achieve improvements in performance mandated by Ofwat and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage
services
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17 Commitments and contingent liabilities continued
b) Operating lease commitments

The group 1s committed to making the following payments dunng the next year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases
which expire as follows

Group

2012 2011

Land and iand and

buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m £m

Within one year - - - 01
Between one year and five years 0.7 - o7 -
After five years 0.5 - 05 -
1.2 - 12 01

The company 1s committed to making the following payments dunng the next year in respect of non-cancellable operating
leases which expire as follows

Company

2012 2011

Land and Land and

buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m £m

Within one year - - - 01
Between one year and five years 07 - 07 -
After five years 13.3 - 127 -
140 - 134 01

c) Banking arrangements

The banking arrangements for both the group and company operate on a pooled basis with certain other group undertakings
Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit
balances Credit balances can be offset against overdrawn balances of parbicipating compames Therefore, as at 31 March
2012, the group and company had contingent habilities of £0 8 million (2011 £6 & milion}

18 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees and details of the share awards
outstanding dunng the year are as follows

Approved Share Option
Employee Sharesave Scheme Scheme
Weighted Weighted

Number of average exercise Number of average exercise
share options pnce {pence) share options price (pence)

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2010 3,401,354 872 3,125 720
Granted durning the year 341,137 1137 - -
Forfeited dunng the year (135,239} 896 - -
Cancelled dunng the year (87,271) 874 - -
Exercised dunng the year (520,711) 839 (3,125) 720
Exptred dunng the year (77,640) 1058 - -
Transferred to other group companies (5,293) 889 - -
Outstanding at 1 Apn! 2011 2,916,337 903 - -
Granted dunng the year 528,509 177 - -
Forfeited durning the year (57,567} 905 - -
Cancelled dunng the year {46,624} 947 - -
Exercised dunng the year (407,517} 925 - -
Expired dunng the year {50,663) 912 - -
Transferred to other group companies 1,873 839 - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 2,884,348 949 - -

The weighted average share pnce dunng the penod was £15 00 (2011 £13 40)
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18 Share based payments continued

a} Share Option Schemes

The options outstanding at the end of the penod are exercisable as shown below

1) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the Severn Trent Plc board may grant those employees who have entered into
an HM Revenue and Customs approved Save as You Eam contract for a penod of three or five years, the nght to purchase
ordinary shares in Severn Trent Plc Options cutstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares

Option pnce

Normal date of exercise (pence) 2012 2011
January 2004 2009 or 2011 592 - 44,914
January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 759 52,207 52,960
January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823 19,057 196,401
January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1172 72,593 86,768
January 2008 2011 or 2013 1221 69,883 197,972
January 2009 2012 or 2014 862 1,072,590 1,167,150
January 2010 2013 or 2015 806 756,888 829,949
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1137 313,614 340,223
January 2012 2015 or 2017 1177 527,516 -

2,884,348 2,916,337

) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board of Sevemn Trent Plc may grant awards to employees of Severn Trent group companies During the
year the board of Severn Trent Plc has announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on performance agamnst the
company's KPI targets Eligible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of £750 It 1s expected that these
awards will be made in August 2012 SIP shares vest with employees on the date of grant

b) Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

Under the LTIP conditional awards are made to executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to performance
conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod

The LTIP awards are subject to total shareholder return over three years for Sevemn Trent Plc measured relative to the
companies ranked 51-150 by market capitalisation in the FTSE index (excluding investment trusts)

Detals of changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Number of awards

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2010 348,453
Granted dunng the year 136,689
Vested dunng the year (53,632)
Forfeited dunng the year (10,671)
Expired dunng the year (30,840}
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 389,899
Granted dunng the year 108,744
Forfeited dunng the year (14,946)
Expired duning the year (113,148)
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 370,549
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18 Share based payments continued

Details of LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 202 2011
July 2008 2011 - 113,148
July 2009 2012 146,972 146,973
July 2010 2013 123,305 129,778

July 2011 2014 100,272 -
370,549 389,899

¢) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matchuing Plan executive directors receive matching share awards over those shares which have been
acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a
maximum ratio of one matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting peniod Dunng the
year matching shares were awarded at a rato of 0 Sto 1

Matching shares are subject to Severn Trent Plc total shareholder retum over three years measured relative to the
companies ranked 51-150 by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index {excluding investment trusts) This replicates the LTIP
performance condition for the 2011 award

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dividends paid through the performance period on the basis
of such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share pnce  Awards will normally vest as soon as the
committee determines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the participant remains in employment at
the end of the perfformance penod

During the year 18,251 (2011 23,100) matching shares with a far value of £8 84 (2011 £6 79) were made to 9 (2011 9)
employees

Number of share optlons

Qutstanding at 1 Apni 2011 23,100
Granted dunng the year 18,251
Cancelled dunng the year (1,800)
Vested dunng the year {909)
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 38,542

Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March 2012 were as follows

Number of shares
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2012 2011
May 2010 June 2013 20,291 23,100
May 2011 June 2014 18,251 -
d) Fair values of awards made in the year
2012 2011
Falr value Fatr value
Number £m Number £m
LTIP awards 108,744 1.4 136,689 11
Sharesave options 528,509 17 341,137 12
Share matching plan 18,251 02 23,100 02
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18 Share based payments continued

The fair value of the LTIP awards was calculated using the Black Scholes model The pnncipal assumptions and mputs into
the valuation were as follows

LTIP award year 2012
Expected volatility (%} 27
Risk free rate (%) 1.57
Expected dvidend yield (%) 4.66

The fair value of the LTIP awards for July 2010 was calculated using the Monte Carlo method The pnncipal assumptions and
nputs into the valuation were as follows

LTIP award vear 2011

Share pnce at grant date (pence) 1228
Number of shares awarded 136,689
Number of employees 19
Vesting perod {years) 3
Expected volatibty (%) 27
Expected life (years) 3
Expected dividend yield (%) n/a
Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting (%) -
Fair value per share (pence) 791

The fair value of the Sharesave options was calculated using the Black Scholes model The principal assumptions were as
follows

Scheme year 2012 2011
Scheme type 3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year
Share price at grant date (pence) 1,520 1,520 1,486 1,486
Number of options granted 408,618 119,891 210,562 130,575
Number of employees 1,471 335 1,012 414
Vesting penod {years) 3 5 3 5
Expected volatility (percentage) 27% 27% 27% 27%
Option Ife (years) 3.5 5.5 35 55
Expected Iife (years) 325 5.25 325 525
Risk free rate (percentage) 053 1.75 163 224
Expected dividend yield (percentage) 4.6 4.6 44 44
Fair value per share {pence) 320 339 348 359

Volatility 1s based on histoncal observations as adjusted for unusual market fluctuations

The farr value of the SMP awards made durng the year was calculated using the Monte Carlo method using the pnncipal
assumptions set out below

2012 201
Assumptions %o %
Expected volatilty
Sevemn Trent group 26 27
Comparator group 41 46
Correlation between Sevemn Trent Pl¢ and comparator group n/a 33

Share pnce volatiity 1s based on observations over a histoncal penod pnor to the date of grant, commensurate of the
expected term of the performance penod The comparator group I1s the companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE Index The
share pnce at the grant date was £15 02 (2011 £11 26)

Dividends paid on the shares dunng the vesting penod are accumulated dunng the vesting penod and released subject to the
achievement of the performance condition, in the same manner as the underlying shares As a result a divtdend yield
assumption 1s not required

Dunng the pencd, the group recognised total expenses of £3 8 millon (2011 £4 7 million) related to equity settled share
based payment transactions
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19 Group cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of profit before interest to net cash inflow from operating activities

2012 2011
£m £m
Operating profit 525.5 500 4
Depreciation charge (note 7) 388.3 350 1
(Profit)loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (4.2) 11
Deferred income credited to the profit and loss account (32) {29)
Prowvisions for liabiliies charged to the profit and loss account 1.7 10
Utihsation of provistons for iabilities {4 2) {10 4)
Pension service and curtalment costs less contnbutions paid (51.8) (16 3)
{Increase)/decrease in stocks (0 1) 04
Increase in debtors {19.5) (17 8)
Increase in creditors 8.4 168
Share based payments charge 3s 47
Net cash flow from operating activities 8447 8271
b) Analysis of changes in net debt
Other non-
At 1 April Cash flow cash changes At 31 March
2011 2012
£rm £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 65 {(57) - 08
Net cash 65 (57) - 08
Debt due within one year (note 10} {101 4) (89 5) (38 5) {229.4)
Debt due after one year {note 11) (3,607 9) (94 6) (140) {3,716 5)
Finance leases (notes 10 and 11) {266 7) 47 8 - (218 9)
Short term deposits (note 12} 40 (39) - 0.1
Net debt (note 12) (3,965 5) (145 9) (525) (4,1639})

20 Ultimate and immediate parent company

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Sevemn Trent Draycote Limited which 1s registered in England and Wales

The ultimate parent undertaking and contreling entity 18 Severn Trent Plc which is registered in England and Wales and 1s
the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group lo consolidale these financial statements Copies of the Annual
Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc are available from the Company Secretary, Severn Trent Plc, Severn Trent Centre,

PO Box 5309, Coventry CV3 9FH

Alternatively, the report can be viewed and downloaded from Severn Trent Plc's website at www severntrent com

A minonty interest of £10 6 m (2011 nil) 1s held by Sevemn Trent Plc in the Severn Trent Water group by virtue of its holding

in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, an indirect investment of Severn Trent Water Limited
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Water Industry Act 1991

Further to the requirements of company law, the directors
are raequired to prepare financial statements which comply
with the requirements of Condibon F Instrument of
Appointment of the company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Guidelnes issued by the Water
Services Regulatton Authonty This additionally requires the
drrectors to

a) Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has sufficient
financial and management resources for the next twelve
months,

b) Confirm that, n their opinion, the company has sufficient
nghts and assets which would enable a special administrator
to manage the affairs, business and property of the
company,

c) Report to the Water Services Regulation Authonty
changes in the company’s activities which may be matenal
in relation to the company’s ability to finance its regulated
activities,

d) Undertake transactions entered into by the appointed
business, with or for the benefit of associated companies or
other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at
arm’s length, and

e} Keep proper accountng records which comply with
Condition F

Diversification and the protection of the core business -
Condition Féa

Severn Trent Water bereby advises

a) That in the opimon of the directors, the Appointee will
have available to it sufficient financial resources and facilities
to enable 1t to camry out, for at least the next 12 months, the
Regulated Actwity (including the mvestment programme
necessary to fulfil the Appointee’s obligatons under the
Appointment), and

b) That in the opinton of the directors, the Appointee will for
at least the next 12 months, have avalable to
managemeni resources which are sufficient to enable 1t to
carry out those functions

Tony Wray

Chief Executive

For and on behalf of the bo
29 May 2012
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authonty

Independent auditors’ report to the Water Services
Regulation Authority {“WSRA") and Directors of Severn
Trent Water Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of Severn Trent
Water Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 on pages
66 to 82 which compnse

« the regulatory histoncal cost accounting
statements, compnsing the regulatory histoncal
cost profit and loss account, the regulatory
histoncal cost balance sheet, the regulatory
histoncal cost statement of total recognised gains
and losses, the histoncal cost reconcihation
between statutory and regulatory accounts, and the
related notes 1 to 2e to the regulatory accounts,
and

+ the regulatory current cost accounting statements
for the appointed business, compnsing the current
cost profit and loss account, the current cost
balance sheet, the current cost cash flow statement
and the related notes 1 to 11g to the regulatory
accounts, including the statement of accounting
policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared In
accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting
polictes set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely
to the Company and the WSRA in order to meet the
requirements of Conditon F of the Instrument of
Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment to the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed
to state to them in our report, In order (a) to assist the
Company to meet its obligation under Conditton F to procure
such a report and (b) to facilitate the camying out by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the directors
and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilites set out on page 34, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts
and for their fair presentation in accordance with the basis of
preparation and accounting policies Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory Accounts in
accordance with International Standards on Audting (UK
and Ireland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of the audit of
the Regulatory Accounts' below, and having regard to the
guidance contained in Audit 05/03 '‘Reporting to Regulators
of Regulated Entities' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
eror This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are approprate to the company’s
crcumstances and have been consistently appled and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall
presentaton of the Regulatory Accounts In addiion, we
read all the financial and non-financial information presented
with the regulatory accounts to dentfy matenal
inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts If we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or
inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the circumstances of the Company where
these are laid down by Conditton F Where Condition F does
not give specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies adepted in respect of the transactons
and balances required to be included in the Regulatory
Accounts are consistent with those used in the preparation
of the statutory financial statements of the company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate
the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information,
which would have been required f we were to express an
audit opinion under International Standards on Auditing (UK
& Ireland)

As permmitted in IN 12/01 the Company has elected to
replace certain tables set out in Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3 06 with the Accounting Separation Tables The
Company 1s under an obligation to present the Accounting
Separation Tables in accordance with its Accounting
Separaton Methodology Statement provided by the
Company to WSRA on 28 May 2012, ({the “Methodology
Statement”) We are not required to assess whether the
methods of cost allocaton set out In the Methodology
Statement are appropnate to the circumstances of the
Company or whether they meet the requirements of the
WSRA, which would have been required If we were to
express an audit opinion under Intemational Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland)

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our optriton, the Regulatory Accounts

« faidy present in accordance with Condition F, the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by the
WSRA, in respect of the Accounting Separation
Tables the Methodology Statement, and the
accounting policies set out on page 72, the state of
the Company's affars at 31 March 2012 on an
histoncal cost and current cost basis, and s
histencal cost and current cost profit and ts current
cost cash flow for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines,
the accountng polictes and the Methodology
statement
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authority

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation

Without modifying our opimion on the Regulatory Accounts,
we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts
have been prepared in accordance with Condition F of the
Appointment and the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the
accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting
policies and, In the case of the regulatory historical cost
accounting statements, under the histoncal cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory
financial statements of the Company and have not been
prepared under the basis of United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP’) Financial
mformation other than that prepared on the basis of UK
GAAP does not necessanly represent a true and fair view of
the financial performance or financial position of a company
as shown in statutory financial statements prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 2008 Furthermore, the
regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages 66
and 67 have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3 05, in that infrastructure renewals
accounting as applied i previous years should continue to
be applied and accordingly, that the relevant sections of
Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied The
effect of this departure from Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and a reconciliation of the balance sheet drawn up
on this basis to the balance sheet drawn up under the
Companies Act 2006 1s given on page 68

Opinion on other matters prescribed by Condition F

Under the terms of our contract, we have assumed
responsibility to provide those addihonal opintons required
by Condition F n relation to the accounting records In our
opmnion

s proper accounting records have been kept by the
appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition
F, and

« the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement with the
accounting records and returns retained for the
purpose of preparing the Regulatory Accounts

M%& P

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, United Kingdom

29 May 2012

Other matters

* The nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA It s not
appropnate for us to assess whether the nature of
the information being reported upon 1s suitable or
appropriate for the WSRA's purposes Accordingly,
we make no such assessment

e  Qur opimion on the Regulatory Accounts Is separate
from our opmon on the statutory financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2012 on which we report, which are
prepared for a different purpose Cur audit report 1n
relation 1o the statutory financial statements of the
Company (our ‘stalutory audit’) was made solely to
the Company's members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the Companies Act
2006 OQur statutory audit work was undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’'s members
those matters we are required to state to them in a
statutory audit report and for no other purpose In
these crcumstances, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom our statutory audit report 1s shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent In witing
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Regulatory accounts — historical cost financial statements

Group profit and loss account year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Non- Non-
Appointed  appointed tnter Appomnted appointed Inter
business  business segment Total business business segment Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Turnover 41,4385 90 - 1,4475 1,3721 88 - 1,3809
Operating costs (668 7) 97) 61 (6723) (6443) (11 6) 62 (649 7)
Histoncal cost depreciation {248 8) - - (2488) (2405) - - (240 5)
Other operating income 41 61 {(61) 41 164 62 {6 2) 16 4
Operating profit 5251 54 - 5305 5037 34 - 507 1
Other income 19 22 - 41 17 19 - 36
Net interest payable {241 0) - - (241 0) (24986) - - {249 6)
Profit on ordinary activities before
taxation 2860 76 - 2936 2558 53 - 2611
Taxation on profit on ordinary activiies
- Current tax (66 6) {19) - (68.5) (559) (15) - (57 4)
- Deferred tax (108 5) - - {108 5) 945 - - 945
Taxation (175 1) {19) - {177 0) 386 (15) - 371
Profit on ordinary activities after
taxation 1109 57 - 116 6 294 4 38 - 298 2
Dividends (260 3) (57) - (266 0) (1498) (3 8) - (153 6)
;t:;z:med {loss)/profit for the financial (149 4) } ) (148 4) 144 6 } ) 144 6
Statement of total recognised gains and losses year ended 31 March 2012
2012 2011
Non- Non-
Appointed appotnted Inter Appointed appointed inter
business business segment Total business business segment Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 110 9 57 - 116 6 294 4 38 - 298 2
Actuanal (loss)/gain (105 7) - - (105 7) 371 - - 371
Tax credit/(charge) on actuanal
(loss)gain 283 - - 283 (9 6) - - (96)
Adjustment in respect of tax rate
change on deferred tax (29) - - (29) (62) - - (62)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions {29) - - (2.9) - - - -
Total recognised gains and losses 277 57 . 334 3157 38 ) 3195

for the financial year

The group results presented are for Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiary undertakings
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Regulatory accounts — histoncal cost financial statements

Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Non- Non-
Appointed  appointed Inter- Appointed  appointed Inter-
business  business segment Total business business segment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 6,1134 - - 6,1134 6,0247 - - 6,0247
Current assets
Stocks 6.4 - - 6.4 63 - - 63
Debtors 365.9 - - 365.9 3375 - - 3375
Short term deposits 0.1 - - 0.1 40 - - 40
Cash at bank and in hand 0.8 - - 0.8 65 - - 65
373.2 - - 373.2 3543 - - 3543
Creditors amounts falling due
within one year
Creditors (328 4) - - {328 4) (311 1) - - (311 1)
Borrowings (229 4) - - {229 4) (114 9) - - (114 9)
Corporation tax payable (37.7) - - (377) (46 6) - - (46 6)
Infrastructure renewal accrual {17 2) - - {17 2) (18 8) - - (18 8)
(612 7) - - {6127) (491 4) - - (491 4)
Net current liabilities {239.5) - - (239 5) (137 1) - - (137 1)
Total assets less current liahilities 5,873.9 - - 58739 5,887 6 - - 58876
Creditors amounts falling due after
more than one year
Borrowings (3,935 4) - - (3,9354) (3.8611) - - (3,861 1)
Other creditors (16) - - (1.6) (130) - - (13 0)
(3,937.0) - - (3,9370) (3,8741) - - (3,8741)
Provisions for liabilities
- Deferred taxation (528 2) - - {528.2) (426 8) - - (426 8)
- Other provisions (9 4) - - {9.4) (11 5) - - (115)
Deferred income (37.7) - - (37.7) (40 4) - - (40 4)
Pension deficit (244 6) - - {244.6) (198 4) - - (198 4)
Net assets 1,117.0 - - 1,1170 1,336 4 - - 1,336 4
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1,000.0 - - 1,000.0 1,0000 - - 1,0000
Profit and loss account 106.4 - - 106 4 3364 - - 3364
Shareholder's funds 1,106.4 - - 1,1064 1,336 4 - - 1,3384
Minonty interests 10.6 - 106 - - - -
Capital employed 1,117.0 - - 11,1170 1,336 4 - - 1,3364

l/
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Regulatory accounts — histoncal cost financial statements

Reconciliation between statutory accounts and historical cost (HC) regulatory accounts

2012 Explanation

£m
Profit and Loss
Turnover as per statutory accounts 1,457.5
ROC income {10 0} Income related to exported energy, Renewable Obligation
Certfficates (ROC's) and ROC bonuses 1s deducted from
operating costs for the regulatory accounts
Turnover as per regulatory HC accounts 1,447 5
Depreciation as per statutory accounts (388.3)
Depreciation - infrastructure 136 3 Reclassified in regulatory accounts
Deferred credits wniten back 3 2 Reclassified in regulatory accounts
Depreciation as per regulatory HC accounts {248 8)
Operating costs per statutory accounts {936 1)
Deduct other operating income (4 1) Reclassified in regulatory accounts
ROC income 100 From turnover as explained above
HC infrastructure assets {127 2)
Statutory infrastructure assets 136 3
Total infrastructure assets difference 91 Adjustment to infrastructure renewals charge
Operating costs per regulatory HC accounts (921 1}
Operating profit as per statutory accounts 525.5
Non operating Income (4 1) Rental income s included within operating profit for statutory
accounts
HC infrastructure assets 91 Adjustment to infrastructure renewals charge
Operating profit as per regulatory HC accounts 530.5
Profit before tax as per statutory accounts 2845
HC infrastructure assets 91 Adjustment to infrastructure renewals charge
Profit before tax as per regulatory HC accounts 293 6
Balance sheot
Net assets as per statutory accounts 1,134 0
infrastructure renewals accrual {17 0) Adjustment to infrastructure renewals charge (pnor and
current years)
Net assets as per regulatory HC accounts 1,117 0
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Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Group profit and loss account: appointed business year ended 31 March 2012

2042 2011
Notes £m £m

Turnover 3a 1,438.5 1,372 1
Current operating cost ad (969 6) (922 3)
Other operating income 3b 39 119
4728 4617

Working capital adjustment 3c (3 2) 04
Current cost operating profit 469 6 462 1
Qther income 1.9 1.7
Net interest payable (241 1) (249 6)
Financing adjustment 1144 169 3
Current cost profit before taxation 3448 3835

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

- Current tax (66 6) (559)
- Deferred tax (108.5) 94 5
Taxation (175 1) 386
Current cost profit attnbutable to shareholders after taxation 169 7 422 1
Dwidend (260 3) {149 8)
Current cost retained {loss)profit {90 6) 2723

Statement of total recognised gains and losses: appointed business year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
£m £m

Profit for the financial year 169.7 4221
Actuanal (loss)/gain (105.7) 371
Tax charge/{credit) on actuanal (loss)gain 28.3 (9 6)
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on defarred tax (2 9) (6 2)
Tax charge on penswon contnbutions (2.9} -
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 86.5 443 4
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Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Group balance sheet: appointed business as at 31 March 2012

2012

201

Notes £m £m

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4 69,9484 48,7243
Third party contnbutions since 1989/90 (21,454.1) (1,921 1)

48,494.3 46,803 2
Working capital 5 925 891
Shortl term deposits 0.9 105
Infrastructure renewals accrual (17.2) (18 8)
Working capital 48,570.5 46,8840
Non operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings (229.4) {114 9)
Non trade debtors 95 49
Non trade creditors due within one year {35 6) {61 3)
Corporation tax payable (60 4) {46 6)
Total non operating assets and liabilities (315.9) (217 9)
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (3,9354) (3,8611)
Other creditors (1.5) (130)

(39369 (3,8741)
Provision for habilities
Deferred taxation (528 2) (426 8)
Other provistons (94) (115)
Pension deficit (244 6) (198 4)
Net provisions (782 2) (636 7)
Total assets 43,5355 42,1553
Capital and reserves
Callled up share capital 1,000 0 1,0000
Profit and loss account 6 {202 5) (31 3)
Current cost reserve 7 42,7274 41,1866
Minonty interests 10.6 -

43,5355 42,1553

Sevem Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012 70



Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Group cash flow statement year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Appointed appointed
business business Total bustness business Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8 8371 76 8447 8218 53 8271
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
interest received 36 - 36 14 - 14
Interest paid (183 1} - (183.1) (162 6) - (162 6)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments {13 6} . {13 6) (108) - {10 8)
Net cash inflow from returns on investing and
servicing of finance {193 1) . (193 1) (172 0) - (172 0)
Taxation (66 6) {2 0) (68 ) (56 8) (15) (58 3)
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (375.9) - (3759) {409 5) - (409 5)
Grants and contnbutions receved 24.3 - 24.3 249 - 249
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (128.9) - (128 9) (96 9) - {96 9)
Disposal of fixed assets 8.8 - 88 196 - 196
Net cash inflow from investing activities {(471.7) - (474 7) (461 9) - {461 9)
Equity dividends paid {260.4) (56) (2660) {149 8) (38) (1536)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid
resources and financing {154.7) - {154 7) (18 7) - (18 7)
Management of iquid resources 39 - 39 (23) - (23)
Net cash flow before financing {150 8) - {150 8) (210) - (21 0}
Financing - -
Finance leases repaid {47 8) - (47 8) (47 3) - (47 3)
Loans advanced 568 0 - 5680 528 4 - 528 4
Closed out swap - - . 205 - 205
Loans repaid {383 9) - (383 9) {477 4) - (477 4)
Equity interest in subsidiary 1ssued to minonty 106 - 10.6 - - -
Cash payments on employee incentive plans (1.8) - (18) {19) - (19)
1451 - 1451 223 - 223
Net {decrease)/increase in cash (57) - (57) 13 - 13
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2012 2011
Non- Non-
Appointed  appointed Appointed appointed
business  business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net {(decrease)increase in cash as above (57) - (57) 13 - 13
Cash flow from movement in net debt {136 3) - {1363) (38) - (38)
Cash flow from movement in hquid resources (3 9) - (39) 23 - 23
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (145 9) . {145 9) (0 2) - (02)
Rolled up mnterest on net debt (52 5) - (52 5) (517) - (517}
Termination of financial instruments - - - (44 2) - (44 2)
Increase in net debt (198 4) - {198 4) (96 1) - {96 1)
Opening net debt (3,965.5) - (3,965.5) (3,8694) - (3,869 4)
Closing net debt (4,163 9) - (4,1639) (3,965 5) - {3,965 5)
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

1 Regulatory reporting

The regulatory accounts as reported on pages 66 to 82
should be read in conjunction with the operating and
financial review on pages 5 to 23 for further understanding of
the performance of the business

It should also be noted that the company has reassessed its
forecast for infrastructure renewal expenditure and thus the
infrastructure renewals charge has been increased to reflect
this

In particular, attention 1s drawn to pages 25 and 27 of the
Directors’ report which sets out the link between Directors’
pay and standards of performance and page 30 of the
Directors’ report in respect of the statement of disclosure of
information to auditors

2 Accounting policies for historical cost
and current cost financial statements
a) Basis of preparation

The regulatory financial statements have been prepared on
a group basis for Severn Trent Water Limited and its
subsidiary underakings to meet the requirements of the
Water Services Regulation Authonty (WSRA)

The regulatery financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Condition F of the Instruments of
Appointment of the Water and Sewerage Undertakers and
the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines as 1ssued by the
WSRA, the accounting policies set out in the statement of
accounting policies and, in the case of the regulatory
histoncal cost accounting statements, under the histoncal
cost convention

The regulatory financial statements are separate from the
statutory financial statements of the company There are
differences between United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Pnnciples (UK GAAP) and the basis of
preparation of infformation provided in the regulatory
accounts because the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
specify alternative treatment or disclosure tn certain
respects Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines do
not specifically address an accounting issue, then they
require UK GAAP to be followed Financial nformation other
than that prepared wholly on the basis of UK GAAP may not
necessanly represent a true and fair view of the financial
performance or financial position of a company as shown in
financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Compames Act 2006

b) General
The accounting policies used are the same as those

adopted In the statutory histoncal cost financial statements
on pages 39 to 41, except as set out below

¢) Turnover

The group's policy for recogmtion of turmover I1s set out in
note 1 to the statutory accounts and apphed consistently
except where noted on page 68

Duning the year, the company’s process for dealing with
properties where the identity of the customer 1s unknown has
been amended Previously, bills were raised n the name of
the ‘Occupier for such properties

Billing for unoccupied properties follows the process
descnbed below

e Where the company i1s informed that the customer has
left a property and the property I1s expected to be
occupied by someone else, a welcome letter i1s sent to
the property encouraging the occupter to contact the
company,

« [f there s no response to the welcome letter within two
months a void letter 1s sent to the property explaining
that we have classified the property as empty and may
schedule the property for disconnection,

+  Meter readings are taken for metered unoccupied
properlies, where consumption i1s recorded, a letter s
sent to the property, and

* Inspections with the aim of confirming the status of
unoccupied properties are undertaken

d) Operating costs

Income relating to electncity generation i1s deducted from
operating costs The difference between this treatment and
that adopted in the statutory accounts i1s descnbed on page
68

@) Infrastructure renewal costs

In accordance with RAG 1 04 the difference between the
infrastructure renewals charge and infrastructure renewals
expenditure 15 held as an accrual or prepayment within the
balance sheet This is a depariure from the provisions of
FRS 15, which requires the infrastructure renewals charge to
be recorded as a deduction to depreciation and deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset, and FRS 12 which
does not allow provisions for future maintenance The
difference 1s set out In the reconciliation between statutory
accounts and histoncal cost regulatory accounts on page 68
The infrastructure renewals charge in the regulatory
accounts vanes from that in the statutory accounts as in
accordance with RAG 1 04 the infrastructure renewals
charge 1s calculated cver a medium to long period {being 15
years) rather than the Asset management plan (five years})

The following policies apply to the current cost financial
statements only-

f) Basis of preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with
guidance 1ssue by the WSRA for modified real term financial
statements suitable for regulation in the water industry They
measure profitabiity on the basis of real financial capital
maintenance, in the context of assets which are valued at
their current cost value o the business, with the exception of
specialised operational and infrastructure assets

g) Tangible fixed assets

Assets In operational use are valued at the replacement cost
of their operating capability To the extent that the regulatory
regime does not allow such assets to eamn a retum high
enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of
the value to the business pnnciple Also, no provision is
made for the possible funding of future replacements of
assets by contnbutions from third parties and, to the extent
that some of the tangible fixed assets would on replacement
be so funded, replacement ¢oslt agamn differs from value to
the business Redundant assets are valued at their
recoverable amounts

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets
as at 31 March 2008 was undertaken dunng 2008/09 and
the adjustments to asset values as a result of that exercise
were included within the tangible fixed asset note In the
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

2 Accounting policies continued

intervening years, between AMP surveys, values are
restated to take account of changes in the general level of
inflation, as measured by changes in Retall Pnce Index
(RPI), and any other significant changes in asset records
identified dunng the year

i} Non infrastructure assets

Speciahsed operational assets

The gross replacement cost of specialised operational
assets has been denved using the latest cost infformation
provided by the AMP

The unamortised portion of third party contnbutions received
1s deducted in amving at net operating assets, as descnbed
tn note 1d) to the UK GAAP financial statements

Non-specialised operational assets

Non-specialised operational assets are valued on the basis
of open market value for existing use at 31 March 1991 and
have been expressed in current terms by adjusting for
movements in property values

il) Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, mpounding and pumped raw water storage
reservoirs, dams and sludge pipelines are valued at
replacement cost, determined pnncipally on the basis of unit
cost data provided by the AMP

iii) Other assets

All other assets are valued on the basis of data provided by
the AMP

iv) Surplus land

Surplus land was valued at current market value for the
purposes of the AMP Any proceeds on disposal to be
passed onto customers will be taken into account, In
accordance with the requirements contained in Condition B
of the Instruments of Appointment as Water and Sewerage

Undertakers

h} Grants and other third party contrnibutions

Grants, infrastructure and other third party contnbutions
receved since 31 March 1980 are camed forward to the
extent thal any balance has not been credited to revenue
The balance camed forward 1s restated for the change In
RPI for the year

I} Real financial capital maintenance adjustments

These adjustments are made to histoncal cost operating
profit tn order to amve at profit after the maintenance of
financial capital in real terms

Working capital adjustment — this 1s calculated by applying
the change in RPI over the year to the opening total of trade
debtors and stock, less trade creditors

Financing adjustment — this 1s calculated by applying the
change in RPI over the year to the opening balance of net

finance, which compnises all assets and habilibes in the

balance sheet apart from those included in working capital

and excluding fixed assets, deferred taxation provision,

index linked debt and dividends payable

3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs
a) Turnover
2012 2011
Water Sewerage Water  Sewerage

services services Total Services services Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Unmeasured - household 342.6 3622 7048 3308 35056 690 3
Unmeasured - non-household 34 92 12,6 40 87 127
Unmeasured 3460 3714 7174 3438 3592 7030
Measured - household 176.3 160.7 3370 159 4 147 6 3070
Measured - non-household 1320 159.0 2910 1287 148 3 2770
Measured 3083 3197 628 0 2881 2959 584 0
Trade effluent - 10.7 107 - 110 110
Larger user tanffs and special agreements 305 379 68.4 287 320 607
Revenue grants - 04 04 - 04 04
Rechargeable works 07 - 07 09 - 09
Bulk supples/finter-company 4.8 - 4.8 47 - 47
Other 43 - 43 40 - 40
Third parties 98 - 98 96 - g6
Other sources 11 27 38 11 23 34
Total turnover 695.7 7428 1,4385 6713 7008 1,3721
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued
b) Other operating income
2012 2011
Water Sewerage Water  Sewerage
services services Total services services Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets 1.9 2.0 39 57 62 19
€) Working capital adjustment
2012 2011
Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
services services Total services services Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Working capital adjustment (1.5) (17) (3.2) 02 02 04
d) Analysis of operating costs
Water services
Treated Water
Water  Raw water Water water services
resources  distnbution treatment  distribution totat
2012 fm £m £m £m £m
Direct costs
Employment costs 28 05 134 287 45 4
Power 84 - 220 58 362
Hired and contracted services 15 01 78 286 Bo
Associated companies - - 16 - 16
Matenals and consumables 06 o1 94 63 164
Service charges 133 - 04 - 137
Bulk supply imports 64 - 37 - 101
Other direct costs 02 01 09 69 81
Total direct costs 33.2 08 59 2 76.3 169.5
Operating expenditure
General and support expenditure 39 02 97 155 293
Scientific services 09 - 26 33 68
Other business activities 05 - 08 10 23
Local authenty rates 44 14 18 4 162 40 4
Exceptional items {0 3) (0 1) (2 5) (57) (8 6)
Third party services - opex 3z - 10 06 53
Total operating expenditure 46 3 23 892 107 2 245.0
Reactive and planned maintenance (including opex)
Reactive and planned maintenance infrastructure 02 06 - 529 537
Reactive and planned maintenance nen-infrastructure 13 - 130 35 178
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge (excluding third party services} - 45 - 772 817
Current cost depreciation 86 45 46 4 385 98 0
Amortisation of deferred credits (01) o1 07 (0 6) (15)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - -
Business activities current cost depreciation - - - - -
Third party services - current cost depreciation 02 - 04 - 06
Third party services - infrastructure renewals charge - - - - -
Total capital maintenance 87 89 46.1 1151 178.8
Total operating costs 550 112 1353 2223 423.8
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued

d) Analysis of operating costs continued

Sewerage senvices

Sewerage
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge services
collection treatment treatment disposal total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Direct costs
Employment costs 138 235 105 07 48 5
Power 53 112 (7 4) - 91
Hired and contracted services 152 149 85 99 485
Associated companies 01 01 - - 02
Matenals and consumables 19 94 107 04 224
Service charges 34 57 - - 91
Other direct costs 24 09 23 01 57
Total direct costs 421 657 246 111 143 5
Operating expenditure
General and support expenditure 65 109 42 08 22 4
Scientffic services - 20 - 09 29
Other business activities 06 10 04 02 22
Local authonty rates 02 234 40 - 276
Exceptional items 37 (15) (0 8) 02 16
Third party services - opex - - - 17 17
Total operating expenditure 531 101.5 324 149 201.9
Reactive and planned maintenance (including opex)
Reactive and planned maintenance infrastructure 120 - - - 120
Reactive and planned maintenance non-infrastructure 37 170 35 16 258
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge (excluding third party services) 455 - - - 455
Current cost depreciation 343 1087 300 05 1735
Amortisation of deferred credits (14) (02) - - (18)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - -
Business activities current cost depreciation - - - - -
Third party services - current cost deprectation - - - - -
Third party services - infrastructure renewals charge - - - - -
Total capital maintenance 78.4 1085 30.0 0.5 217 4
Total operating costs 131.5 2100 62.4 154 4193
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3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued

d) Analysis of operating costs continued

Retail services

Retail Retall non-
household household
gereral & general & Retail
Retail support  Retail non- support services
household memo  household memo total'
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Direct costs
Biling 66 18 o8 01 74
Payment handling, remittance and cash handhng 23 04 02 01 25
Debt management 91 24 18 04 109
Doubtful debts 267 03 45 - 312
Chantable trust donations 35 - - - 35
Vulnerable customer schemes 01 - - - 01
Non network customer enquines and complants 78 26 05 02 83
Meter reading 48 16 o8 02 56
Meter maintenance/instaltation non capex 13 03 02 - 15
Network customer enquines and complaints 59 17 04 01 63
Disconnecheons 01 - - - 01
Demand side water efficiency initiatives 08 01 - - 08
Services to developers - - 01 - 01
Support for trade effluent comphance - - 16 03 16
Customer side leaks 17 - 17 - 34
Other direct costs 04 01 - - 04
Total direct costs 71.1 112 126 1.4 837
Operating expenditure
General and support expenditure 112 14 126
Scientific services - 04 04
Other business activiies 05 01 06
Local authonty rates 05 - 05
Exceptional items 27 {0 6) (33)
Third party services - - -
Total operating expenditure 806 13.8 94.5
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge - - -
Curmrent cost depreciation 290 30 320
Amortisation of deferred credits - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintenance 290 3.0 32.0
Total operating costs 1096 169 126.5

! “Retail Services total" excludes the “Retall household general & support memo™ and “Retail Non-household general &
support memo” columns as these prowide further analysis of the "General and supportive expendiure” included withun

Operating expenditure

As permitted in IN 12/01 the Company has elected to replace certain tables set out in Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06
with the Accounting Separation Tables above There s no requirement to present comparative values In respect of these

tables
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

5 Working capital

2012

2011

£m £m
Stocks 6.4 63
Trade debtors
Measured household 433 360
Unmeasured household 693 645
Measured non-household 257 244
Unmeasured non-household 0.8 09
Other 26 20
Measured income accrual 155.6 1399
Prepayments and other debtors 59.0 649
Trade creditors (14 8) (12 2)
Deferred income - customer advance receipts (1329) (124 7)
Capital credrtors and accruals (36.1) (42 9)
Accruals and other creditors (86.4) (70 0)
Working capital 925 891
6 Reserves — profit and loss account
2012 2011
£m £m
At1 Apnl (313) (3277)
Retained current cost (loss)/profit for the year {90 6) 2723
Share based payments 26 28
FRS 17 actuanal (loss)/gamn (105 7) a1
Tax credit/(charge) on actuanal gainfloss 25.4 (15 8)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions {29) -
At 31 March {202 5) (31 3)
7 Reserves — current cost reserve
2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 41,186.6 24,582 1
AMP adjustment - 14,4321
RPI adjustments
Fixed assets 1,721.9 24383
Working capital 32 {0 4)
Financing (114.4) (169 3)
Grants and third party contnbutions (69 9) (96 2)
At 31 March 42,7274 41,1866
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

8 Reconciliation of appointed business current cost operating
profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
2012 2011
£m £m
Current cost operating profit 469.6 462 1
Working capital adjustment 32 (04)
Working capital changes 34 (15 5)
Other iIncoma 1.9 17
Current cost depreciation after amortisation of deferred income 301.0 278 1
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible assets (3 9) (11 9)
Infrastructure renewals charge 127.2 1139
Other non-cash profit and loss tems (65 3) (62)
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 83741 8218

The 2012 other non-cash profit and loss items consist pnmanly of 51 8 milen (2011 16 3 million) excess of pension

contnbutions paid and curtafment gain over pension current service charge

9 Analysis of net debt

Interest rate risk profile

Fixed interest Floating  Index linked

rate  interest rate rate Total

£m £m £m £m
Matunty profile
Less than one year - 2294 - 229 4
Between one and two years 177 - 160 3 1780
Between two and five years 6703 297 4 - 967 7
Between five and twenty years 13757 1700 1714 1,717 1
In more than twenty years 246 6 - 8260 1,072 6
Total borrowings 23103 696 8 1,157 7 4,164.8
Impact of interest rate swaps entered into by the group and company 2386 (238 6) - -
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps 2,548.9 458.2 1,157.7 4,164.8
Short temn deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (0 9) - (09)
Net Debt as at 31 March 2012 2,548.9 457.3 1,157.7 4,163.9
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps
as at 31 March 2011 2,496 8 3749 1,104 3 39760
Short temm deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (10 5) - (105)
Net Debt as at 31 March 2011 2,496 8 3644 1,104 3 3,965 5

Fixed interest debt incurs interest at a weighted average rate of 5 8% (2011 & 9%) Interest on these borrowings 1s fixed for a

weighted average penod of 13 6 years (2011 9 8 years)
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

10 Reconciliation of HCA operating profit to CCA operating profit

2012 2011
£m £m

HCA operating profit per regulatory accounts 530.5 5071
Less non appomted activities (5.4) (34)
Sub total HCA accounts 525.1 5037
Less difference In profit on disposals {02) (4 5}
Add back working capital adjustment {32) 04
Add HCA depreciation including infrastructure renewals charge 3792 3573
Less CCA depreciation (304.1) (280 9)
Less infrastructure renewals charge (127.2) (113 9)
CCA operating profit 469.6 462 1

As In previous years the pnincipal reconciling item between the histoncal cost profit and the current cost profit 1s the difference
in depreciation charges

11 Regulatory capital values

At each pnce review, the Office of Water Services sets prnce imits which it considers will enable companies to eam a
reasonable return on captal The Office of Water Services bases that return on the Regulatory Capital Values (RCV)

The projected outturn for the company’s RCV from the December 2009 determination 1s as follows

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
At 31 March £m £m £m £m £m
Per determination {at average 2007/08 pnces) 6,114 6,141 6,177 6,236 6,279
Actuallestimated cuttumn {at average pnces) 6,638 6,986 7,219 7,444 7,703
Regulatory capital values at 2011/12 prices
2012
£m
Opening regulatory capital value for the year 6,638.4
Indexation 3185
Opening regulatory capital value at average 2011/12 pnces 6,954 9
Capital expenditure "7s
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 143 6
Granis and contnbutions {24 0)
Depreciation (327.3)
Infrastructure renewals charge {132.9)
Outperformance of regulatory assumptons {46.1)
Closing regulatory capital value 6,985.7
Average regulatory capital value 6,970.0

The RCVs in this table are based on those published by Ofwat in its letter RD04/10, inflated to 2011/12 pnces The value of
the RCV s protected against inflakon by increasing the value each year by RPI

In the table above RCV has been uplifted by year average RPI

Capital expenditure and infrastructure renewals expenditure assumed In setiing pnce limits are added to the RCV Pnce
setting assumptions on current cost depreciation, the infrastructure renewals charge, and capital grants and contnbutions
received are deducted each year

A company has an incentive to outperform Ofwat's regulatory assumptions and eam a higher rate of return than was
assumed when setting pnce imits The RCV 1s the mechanism used to reflect past capital outperformance and transfer the
benefits of this to customers through lower pnce imits The level of outperformance 1s assessed by companng net actual
capital expenditure in the year with Ofwat projectons, with the outperformance adjustment deducted from the RCV The
benefits of the outperformance are passed on to customers five years after it has been achieved
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited
Year ended 31 March 2012

Information in respect of transactions during the year with any other business or activity of the
appointee or any associated company

a) Borrowings or sums lent
Sums borrowed and repaid by the appointee dunng the year from associated companmies were

Pnncipal
amounts Repayment dates Interest rates
£m %
East Worcester Water Limited Borrowed 115 May 2011 to July 2011 3 Months LIBID
East Worcester Water Limited Repaid 38 Apnl 2011 to October 2011 3 Months LIBID
Sevemn Trent Plc Borrowed 3180 Apnl 2011 to March 2012 LIBOR + 0 19%
Sevem Trent Plc Repad 2285 Apnl 2011 to December 2011 LIBOR + 0 19%
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited Borrowed 05 October 2011 3 Months LIBID
Sevemn Trent Utilittes Finance Repaid 01 February 2012 3 Months LIBID
Sevemn Trent Leasing Limited Borrowed 1726 March 2032 4 75%

b) Dividends

The company's dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company's regulatory obligations and at
a level which 1s decided each year after consideraton of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, market
expectations, actual and potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount dectared 1s expected to vary each year as the mpact of factors changes The ordinary dividend declared and
paid by the company in 2011/12 amounted to £266 0 million (2011 £153 6 million), being 26 6p per share (2011 15 4p per
share)

¢) Transfer of assets/liabilities

Dunng the year the appotntee transferred £215 0 milllon of assets to Severn Trent Leasing Limited under finance leases
These were subsequently transferred back to Severmn Trent Water Limited under separate finance leases Both transactions
occurred as par of an Asset backed funding arrangement

d) Supply of services
Services supplied by the appointee to associated companies

Nature of transactions Company Terms £m
Service charges In respect of payroll, legal, transport and other Vanous Cost 05
Water, tankenng, reception, treatment and disposal of waste Vanous Market rent o8
Sale of crops Severn Trent Green Power Lid  Cost 06
Management charge Severn Trent Plc Cost 64
83

Services supplied to the appointee by associated companies
Services supplied to the appointee

Competitive Other market

Company Turnover Nature of transactions letting testing  No market Tota!

£m £m £m £m
Derwent Insurance Ltd 7 9 Insurance services - 60 - 60
Sevem Trent Laboratones Ltd 31 @ Analytical services 56 - - 56
Severn Trent Metenng Services Ltd 14 0 Meter installation and maintenance 116 02 - 118

5 2 Supply of matenals and other
Severn Trent Services Ltd engineenng services 08 - 090 17
Sevemn Trent Green Power Ltd 2 4 Supply of Electncity - 10 - 10
Severn Trent Pic (mgmt charge} - Pass through costs - - 10 10
60.5 180 72 1.9 271

Of the £27 1 miflion, £10 7 million was spent on investment expenditure

e) Omission rights
None

f) Waivers
None

g) Guarantees
None
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited
Year ended 31 March 2012

Delivering against our Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

201011 201112 201112 At a

Basis KPI Performance Performance | Quartile | glance
MAT Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked' 037 030 Upper —
QR Employee motivation %" 74% 75% Median —
MAT Water quality (test fallure rate) ppm 210 225 Median v
MAT SIM Qualitative - 3 86 Median —_
MAT SIM Quantative® - 205 Upper —
MAT Unplanned interruptions > 6 hrs per 1,000 properties” 2385 11.12 Lower -
NFPR Properties at nsk of low pressure per 1,000 properties® | 007 0 06 Upper —_
MAT First tme job resolution %" 97 50% 93.83% Upper -
QR Non-performance against Regulatory Obligations %* 4% 6% Upper —_
AMP Capex (net) %"° 7 40% 431% NIA N/A
MAT Capital Process quality - 972 N/A N/A |
ACT Debtor days® 338 358 Median —_
ACT Opex - £m>"° 519 548 N/A N/A
ACT Efficient billing factor (properties connected) - 3,306,489 NIA N/A
MAT Polluton incidents {(cat 1, 2, & 3)7 378 458 Median —_—

Sewer flooding incidents — other causes per 1,000
MAT properties >,° 0 154 0141 Median -
ACT Sewage Treatment Works — breach of consents %’ 1 69% 2 54% Lower v
ACT Supply availlability 94 40% 96 50% Lower —_
MAT Net Energy Use - GWh* 706 679 4 Upper -
MLE Leakage MI/d>> 497 464 Upper A
Key
A Improved quartile

—_— Maintained quartile
v Declined quartile

Notes
Benchmarks updated in September

MAT = Mowving Annual Total

QR = Quarterly Review

NPR = Number of Properties on Register
MLE = Maximum Likelithood Estimate
ACT = Year end Actual

Actual performance across all employees and agency staff

Performance based on annual survey of all employees

As reported 1n Ofwat Annual Retum  Performance figures are prowisional at this stage as the Ofwat Annual Return will be
submutted to Ofwat on 15 June 2012

Actual performance based wholly or partially on internal data

Benchmark data 1s unavaillable until September 2012

Actual performance based on audited UK GAAP financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

Measure for calendar year to 31 December 2011

Includes minor escape of sewage Pror year restated

O Uh WK =

KPIs 4 & 5 SIM (Service Incentive Mecharusm) Consists of 2 equally weighted measures Quantitative looks at the number of
complaints, unwanted contacts and engaged/abandoned cails Qualitative fooks at the end to end customer service by completing
200 customers surveys 4 imes a year Customers rate us based on a score of 1 {very dissatisfied) to 5 (very satisfied) The 2 SIM
measures replace customer wntten complatnts per 1,000 properties and first time call resolution for billing

KP1 11 Capital process qualty This covers the capital work undertaken by the One Supply Chain There 1s no external benchmark
available for this measure The KPI s based an an index of four areas (people, process, customer and finance) incorporating a
number of metncs such as health and safety, programme management, customer service, and financial performance

KPI 14 Efficient billing factor ("000 properites connected) Ofwat have introduced a Billing Incentive which 1s designed to ensure that
companies are appropnately rewarded for the efficiency of their billing in terms of maintaiming and growing their chargeable
customer base |t looks at the average number of billable properties connected to water services
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